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FOREWORD
BY THE
3.
CHAIRPERSON
It is a great honour for me as the
new Chairperson of the Eastern
Cape Liquor Board’s (ECLB) Board
of Directors to present this Annual
Report for the 2019/2020 financial
year. The report is a reflection of
the
enormous
strides
this
organisation has made over the
years to indeed become the best
liquor regulator in the country. I am
glad to point out that this reporting
period was marked by numerous
accomplishments and indeed
some
challenges,
as
our
organisation gave impetus to
implementation of its strategic
framework. The proper control and
regulation of liquor industry in our
Province and indeed in our country
is in the national interest,
specifically because while liquor is
one of the formidable economic
drivers, correspondingly, it is
considered a dangerous, harmful
and hazardous substance if it is not
used appropriately.
As the Board, we undeniably concede
that the abuse of liquor continues to
be a major contributory factor to
many unnecessary deaths and acts
of violence in our country. Quite
frankly, all of us are concerned about
the devastating effect that alcohol
abuse has on the individual, the
family, the community and the nation.
Henceforth, as the Board we have
consciously prioritised rigorous
regulation of the liquor industry to
ensure that we strike the necessary
balance between its economic
spinoffs and socio-economic impact
on our society. In this brief report I
reflect specifically on our strategic
overview, the strategic stakeholder
relationships we have managed to
forge, our performance in the period
under review, challenges that
confront the work of the Board, our
medium to long-term goals and
finally I acknowledge those that have
considerably contributed to the work
of the organisation in more than one
way.
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STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND REFLECTION
ON PERFORMANCE

This Annual Report is a reflection on how the ECLB
has constantly found innovative ways to
collaboratively work with stakeholders to position
and augment its mandate. The Board remains fully
cognisant of the mammoth expectations that have
been placed on it, and does realise that it will not be
able to materially fulfil such expectations without
strategic integration with other stakeholders.
Henceforth, the Board has rigorously sought to
mobilise and strengthen relationships and working
together with all its stakeholders for the benefit of
the people of the Eastern Cape. Correspondingly,
we
recognise
that
effective
stakeholder
engagement results in improved synergies between
partners and potentially facilitates beneficial
streamlined services. In seeking to heighten our
stakeholder mobilisation, we have identified
potential areas of collaboration, and have
conceptualised plans to ensure that there is
ongoing support for all our projects. I am delighted
to report that in the period under review, ECLB has
received incredible stakeholder support in the
implementation of its programmes, and this has
further assuaged the budgetary constraints that the
organisation is currently experiencing.

I am delighted to report that the strategic path that
ECLB has traversed during the past five years
(previous MTSF period) has seen it evolving to
become a strong force in the regulation of liquor
industry in the Province in particular, and in the
country in general. Due to the ongoing need for the
organisation to continuously realign its operations
to meet the ever changing challenges and
opportunities in the Province, the Board has
overseen the review of organisation’s strategic
plan. This process has culminated in the adoption
of a revised five year strategic plan that is aligned
to Government’s Medium Term Strategic
Framework (2021 – 2024), and is responding to
three national strategic outcomes, which are
transformation and job creation; social cohesion
and safe communities, and a capable, ethical and
developmental state. Invariably, by aligning its
strategy with national priorities, the Board
maintains relevance in addressing the needs of the
country and directly or indirectly plays a role in the
socio-economic development thereof.
In the period under review, the Board was
responsible for overseeing the governance of the
organisation, ensuring that the relevant prescripts
pertaining to legislation and regulatory frameworks
were conscientiously followed. One of the most
magnificent task the Board had to deal with was to
provide guidance and oversee the review process
of the Eastern Cape Liquor Act. I am reasonably
delighted to report that the review of the Act has
been finalised and signed off by the Premier.
Currently, the Shareholder, in collaboration with the
ECLB, is finalising the drafting of the Regulations
that will enact the implementation of the reviewed
Act. The review of the Act has sought to ensure that
we improve the regulation of liquor industry and
further reengineer it to become a strong economic
force.

CHALLENGES FACED BY BOARD
In the period under review, ECLB has incessantly
experienced the precipitous decrease in its budget
grant in real terms. This has undoubtedly placed the
organisation in an unenviable position and
increasingly impacts directly on the fulfilment of its
mandate. In order to ensure optimum provision of
its service, the Board and the Shareholder continue
to engage on how to prioritise funding of its
services in the light of shrinking national and
provincial budgets.
The Board has also continued to grapple with the
seemingly elusive objective of transforming liquor
industry. We do realise that the concept of radical
economic transformation demands a fundamental
change in the structure, systems, institutions and
patterns of ownership, management and control of
the economy in favour of all South Africans,
especially the poor, the majority of whom are
African and female, as defined by the governing
party and which determines policy for democratic
Government. However, liquor industry remains an
enormously untransformed economic sector, and
the Board is committed to drive the transformation
agenda of the industry with the support of various
key stakeholders. We also view the burgeoning
cases of alcohol abuse, particularly the underage
drinking, as an extreme aberration that has to be
fought from all fronts, and we remain steadfast in

The performance of the Eastern Cape Liquor Board
in the past year is one that we can truly be proud of.
Notwithstanding
the
increasing
economic
challenges in our country, this report reflects on the
enormous performance of the organisation in the
year under review. I also cannot be oblivious to the
reality of the fiscal constraints that the Eastern
Cape Liquor Board is currently experiencing in its
endeavour to fulfil its mandate.
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that it positively contributes to community
development, and further become a strong
economic force.

our resolve to eliminate this abhorrent behaviour.
We are further fully mindful of the fact that one of
the root causes of the growing abuse of alcohol in
our communities is the blatant non-compliance
among liquor traders, and we interminably shall
continue to rigorously enforce strict adherence to
regulations.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS /APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to acknowledge
the departure of the previous Chief Executive
Officer, Mr Khanyile Maneli, who resigned at the end
of March, 2020. Mr Maneli has made considerable
contribution to ECLB, and for that we sincerely
thank him and wish him well in his new endeavours.
Similarly, it gives me great pleasure to use this
opportunity to formally welcome our new Acting
Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Nombuyiselo Makala, to
the organisation’s helm. I am convinced that she
possesses both the capacity to build on the
tremendous foundation already in place and the
passion to take the organisation to its greater
heights.

As we present this Annual Report, our country is
confronted with unprecedented Pandemic, Covid
19, that has ruthlessly ravaged the entire world. The
outbreak of the Pandemic has inevitably
necessitated the reconfiguration of many sectors
of society, including the entire economy. The liquor
industry has undoubtedly suffered extreme effects
of the Covid 19, which was exacerbated by the
intermittent ban on alcohol sale during the
Lockdown period.
There is good reason to believe that the economy
has
proportionately
experienced
larger
employment losses in South Africa, especially the
liquor industry. In some instances, the ban on
alcohol sales has shown striking health benefits
and valuable lessons for regulation, which we must
seek to espouse as the circumstances improve.
This experience essentially demonstrates that it
cannot be business as usual in our efforts to
regulate liquor industry, particularly in our Province.
More needs to be done to refocus our efforts and
improve the regulation of liquor industry in line with
myriad lessons that we have learnt during the
Lockdown. Our efforts should largely be focused on
mobilising partnerships for more impact in our
endeavour to transform the behaviour of our people
towards liquor consumption.

We also bade farewell to two Board members
during the year; Professor Lindelwa Majova-Songca
who served as the Chairperson of the Board and
Advocate Zuko Mapoma who served as a nonexecutive director of the Board. On behalf of the
Board I would like to thank them both for their
contribution over the years and wish them well for
the future. This year we welcomed three new
members to the Board, myself, Ntsiki MoleshePakade as the Board Chairperson, Ms Bongeka Jojo
and Ms. NomaChina Tys. Notably, the new
members bring valuable set of skills and
experience in various areas. I can also say with
confidence that the entire membership of our Board
have the strength, collective spirit and necessary
business shrewdness to lead the organisation on a
new growth trajectory, whilst re-affirming their
commitment to the effective and timely
implementation of our mandate and dedicating
themselves to exceeding expectations as we move
forward.

MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM GOALS
The Board will continue to prioritise adherence to
corporate
governance,
ensuring
good
accountability and transparency, while prompting
stakeholder confidence. Similar to other
organisations, as the Board we are bound by the
advent of increased accountability that is expected
of all company directors in order to enhance risk
control. We do also acknowledge that the Fourth
Industrial Revolution is fundamentally disrupting
the way we think, work and interact with each other,
and it demands for the greater sense of culture
change and creativity, which must characterise our
organisation. As the Board, we inevitably need to
use this currency to our advantage to revolutionise
our sector so as to benefit the Eastern Cape society
and economy. Significantly, digital growth and
innovation are important concepts that must drive
our operations so ECLB can function to its full
potential. As we implement our mandate, it is
envisioned that liquor industry will be engendered
to become fully compliant with the legislation so

As we look back on another successful year, I
would like to express my appreciation to all
members of staff of the ECLB for their hard work
throughout this period. ECLB’s success and its
reputation as a credible and reliable liquor regulator
can mainly be assigned to the continuous efforts
and performance of its committed staff, as well as
the exceptional cooperation between management
and staff.
On behalf of the Board, I extend my sincere
appreciation to the Honourable MEC, Mr Mlungisi
Mvoko for his steadfast support and guidance
provided throughout the year. I also wish to convey
our heartfelt gratitude to the Portfolio Committee
on Economic Development that has remained a
trusted overseer of our work, which has massively
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contributed to the successful execution of our
mandate. Its vigorous oversight role expressed in a
meticulous attention to detail is truly appreciated,
and we look forward to more fruitful working
relations going into the future. Thank you also to all
our stakeholders for their unwavering commitment
to work with us, and we look forward to further
strengthening of working relations. As the whole
world, including South Africa, grapples with the
Covid 19 Pandemic, there is absolutely no doubt
that as various organisations, we need to come
even closer in order to cooperatively deal with the
repercussions of this Pandemic that has brought
unprecedented misery to our economy, and by
extension to our people.

CONCLUSION
As I conclude, I would like to express a sentiment
that as we have come this far, we cannot waver
now, and more importantly we are not alone. As we
heighten our stakeholder base, everyone knows
that our purposes are intertwined. I would also like
to accentuate the fact that we are poised to
succeed because our strategy has now become
embedded in our working methods. But it is also
important to acknowledge the fact that as an
organisation, there is room to improve in the midst
of challenges that increasingly encumber our
work.
On behalf of the Board, I would like to congratulate
the management team for delivering on their
promise to streamline the regulation of liquor
industry through concerted efforts of integration
and innovation. I am confident in the relevance and
robustness of the strategic blueprint that we have
developed to guide our journey to full potential, and
we look forward to greater progress in the year
ahead. I again look forward to working with all my
Board colleagues in the year ahead as we strive
together to take the organisation to an altogether
new path. I have no doubt that their individual and
collective contributions will prove highly beneficial
in terms of both the deliberations of our Board and
the strategic direction of the organisation.

__
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
Ms N.% Moleshe – Pakade
Board Chairperson
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4. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
As I reflect on the priorities we set for ourselves in
the 2019/20 Work Programme, I am pleased to
report that Eastern Cape Liquor Board (ECLB) has
worked tirelessly to achieve its targets as reflected
on this Annual Report. I must, however, indicate that
this progress has been sustained against the
backdrop of tremendous financial and human
resource constraints that the organisation has been
operating under during this period. Against the
background of our enhanced mandate, we have
ceaselessly continued to successfully execute our
strategic blueprint of delivering value to our clients
and stakeholders through streamlined regulation of
liquor industry in the Province. Moreover, capable,
engaged workforce are inevitably critical to our
organisation’s success. Our workforce has
continued to live the organisation’s core values,
which support the seamless delivery of our
strategic objectives. Through our engaged
workforce, ECLB has become an important nexus
between communities and liquor industry, and
while this assertion may seem obvious, putting it
into practice requires concerted effort from the
ECLB workforce.
In the previous Annual Report, we clearly stated that
we remain committed to discharging our
responsibilities as mandated by the Eastern Cape
Liquor Act of 2003, and this year has seen a more
productive implementation of the strategy with our
organisation responding positively to the ongoing
challenges. To further illustrate continued
commitment, the organisation has also obtained an
unqualified audit report for the 2019/20 financial
year – our 4th consecutive unqualified audit in the
current planning cycle. However, it is of great
concern that I present this report during the period
when the whole world is confronted by the deadly
Covid 19 that has disrupted normal life and forced
organisations to review their operations in order to
respond to unprecedented demands of the
circumstances that have been imposed by the
Pandemic. As an organisation we have also had to
review our business processes going into the
future, which has necessitated intensive
‘repurposing’ of our operations in order to align with
the demands of the current situation. With that said,
in this Report we provide a comprehensive report
on the work that the organisation has fulfilled in
seeking to implement its mandate in the period
under review, and a summary of the milestones are
provided in the next sections.
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management systems were constantly reviewed to
ensure alignment with the updated National and
Provincial Treasury Regulations and Instructions.
Integration of financial and administrative systems
and processes to manage revenue have
continuously received priority. Matters raised by the
Auditor General in the 2018/19 financial year were
accordingly addressed by the management. The
Internal Audit and the Audit Committee functioned
optimally during the period under review, ensuring
that potential risks are managed promptly. The
rigorous risk management systems have
reasonably prevented potential mismanagement
cases. The Authority will continue to strive to
maintain and optimise governance standards.

We remain cognisant of the fact that we present
this report during the period that is fraught high
levels of uncertainty due to the impact of Covid 19.
The sudden surge of Covid 19 Pandemic in our
Province necessitated an immediate realignment
of our operations as imposed by the Regulations of
the Pandemic. The Lockdown period imposed
unprecedented disruptions in our operations
resulting in the suspension of some activities, etc.
The regular ban of alcohol aimed at reducing
alcohol-related hospital admissions as the surging
number of coronavirus cases strained emergency
hospital wards unravelled some deep-seated
challenges of alcohol consumption our society,
which further warrants a concerted intervention
initiative. It has also been very interesting to see the
industry introduce responsible drinking programs
and declaring their interest to work more closely
with the state and civil society groups to identify
and resolve problems. Further, it is crucial to
highlight the fact that Covid 19 has placed us as an
organisation on a higher pedestal in terms of how
we seek to repurpose our operations going into the
future. There are valuable lessons that we must
harness that have been revealed by the Pandemic
on how we could better run our business
operations, including embracing technology.

·

I must report that in the period under review, some
programmes have operated with inadequate staff
complements due to current budgetary constraints.
ECLB has prioritised the skills development of its
employees through various training programmes.
In this regard, additional interventions have been
implemented to ensure that ECLB retains critical
skills. ECLB implemented its skills development
programmes to ensure continuous development of
employees’ competencies in order to add much
needed value to the organisation. Furthermore, a
special focus has been placed on employees’
wellness through facilitation of various intervention
initiatives that sought to provide support to
employees. I must also point out that ECLB
management works in tandem with employees’
unions that are legitimately established within the
organisation in order to ensure that employees’
rights are protected and where necessary their
needs are promptly attended to.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
During the year under review, ECLB performed well
and I am delighted to share some of the
developments that took place and achievements
that were registered.
·

Corporate Goals Achievement

During the period under review, ECLB achieved
most of its strategic goals in accordance with the
strategic plan and in some cases even exceeded its
expectations. Accordingly, the targets set for the
financial year were effectively achieved. The details
of these achievements are covered extensively
throughout this Annual Report. However, the
budget cuts in the MTEF have put the quality of the
organisation’s work at risk. In order to maintain the
quality of work and make a strategic contribution,
ECLB had to reprioritise and rationalise its
resources to ensure it delivers on its core mandate.
·

Human Resources

·

Information Technology

Technology has increasingly become the mainstay
of our business operations. We have become alive
to the immediate demands that are imposed by the
Fourth Industrial Revolution that is literally more
than just technology-driven change. Rather, it is
driven by a disruptive innovation that positively
impact our core business processes. We have
embraced new technological systems that have
enabled us to streamline our business processes,
including modernising our licensing systems. We
have digitised majority of our operations for greater
efficiency and effectiveness, including our current
approach to public engagement and policy
implementation. The utilisation of our Geographical
Information System (GIS) has enabled the
organisation to closely monitor all its licensed
liquor outlets, more so in relation to their
concentration and proximity to public places
(schools, churches, etc.). This is, however, an area

Corporate Governance & Finance

ECLB has operated within the parameters of good
corporate governance in all its work throughout the
reporting period. It has lived up to its values and has
continued to exemplify good corporate governance
principles. The organisation is stable and has run
effectively under the leadership of the outgoing
Chief Executive Officer, K.C. Maneli. Supply Chain
Management
policies
and
other
related
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that presents more opportunities for improvement
and requires further strengthening build its capacity
to deliver to its full potential.
·

·

Social Accountability is mandated to reduce the
harmful effects of the excessive consumption of
alcohol. During the period under review, the
Division intensified its focus on the implementation
of Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy initiatives.
Areas of focus included taking steps to promote
responsible
trading
and
drinking
within
communities, educating young people about the
dangers of underage drinking, raising awareness
on the dangers of the Foetal alcohol Syndrome and
driving under the influence of alcohol.

Licensing programme.

Licensing programme can be regarded as Eastern
Cape Liquor Board’s raison d'être, as it specifically
regulates licenses that are being processed and
those approved. In the period under review,
massive strides have been made in improving the
licensing system in order to enhance licensing
efficiency and effectiveness. The automation of the
licence management and tracking system within
the application processing is fully operational. We
have seen a slight decrease in applications for new
liquor licenses.

In collaboration with various stakeholders, Social
Accountability facilitated a myriad anti-alcohol
abuse campaigns throughout the Province. In
collaboration with industry role-players and other
government partners, various sporting activities
were facilitated as a drive to encourage young
people to refrain from the abuse of alcohol. In the
period under review, Social Accountability in
partnership with Aware!org introduced underage
drinking in the school curriculum, which was a
considerable milestone in the fight against
underage drinking in the Province. In the period
under review the new concepts of school-based
ambassadors and public dialogues were
introduced that sought to heighten the impact of
the underage drinking intervention initiatives.

Licensing Department has worked tirelessly to
facilitate the establishment of liquor traders
associations throughout the Province in order to
promote easy coordination and encourage selfregulation among liquor traders. As part of
empowering liquor traders, a liquor traders’
development programme was sustained in the
period under review. As part of this programme,
Licensing Department facilitated education
workshops for liquor traders on the business
registration and tax registration. The Eastern Cape
Liquor Act requires that liquor traders renew their
liquor licenses annually, and in the period under
review, extensive measures were undertaken to
ensure that liquor traders timeously renewed their
liquor licenses. However, there are some liquor
traders who failed to renew their liquor licences in
this financial year, and this may inadvertently be a
recipe for the exacerbation of illegal trading.
·

Social Accountability

·

Research and Development

Research has increasingly become an important
element of the organisation’s business operations.
Research has played a significant role in providing
data that inform some of the ECLB’s intervention
initiatives and programmes. In the period under
review, a research study on the prevalence of
alcohol consumption among pregnant women was
concluded. The study was conducted in the Buffalo
City Metropolitan Municipality, and has provided
much needed data on the extent of alcohol
consumption among pregnant women and specific
areas that experience the highest prevalence so
that Social Accountability interventions can be
targeted to such areas that have been scientifically
identified. In the period under review, data on the
economics of liquor industry in the Province were
sourced from the Nielsen Research Company. The
data, among other things, outline the Eastern Cape
Province’s expenditure on alcohol.

Compliance and Enforcement

In the period under review, Eastern Cape Liquor
Board Inspectorate has worked hard to promote
liquor traders’ adherence to trading conditions. The
Division conducted pre- and post-inspections in
order to ensure that liquor outlets comply with
conditions of their licenses as outlined in the
regulations. This Report reflects extensively on the
number of inspections conducted in the period
under review. As part of compliance and
enforcement, the Division, in partnership the SAPS,
intensified its efforts to alleviate the scourge of
illegal trading in the Province. Numerous
unlicensed liquor outlets were identified, closed
down and referred to the Criminal Justice System
for prosecution. In the period under review, noncompliance with the liquor trading conditions has
continued to characterise liquor industry and there
is a need for the capacitation of the Division in
order to increase its impact in the fight against the
growing cases of inconsiderate trading.

14

Acknowledgement
I wish to extend a deep word of gratitude to our
outgoing CEO, Mr K.C Maneli, for his immense
contribution to the ECLB, and we wish him well in
his new position. Let me also acknowledge the
contribution that previous Chairperson, Professor
Majova-Songca, and Board Member, Advocate
Mapoma, made during their incumbency at the
ECLB. Similarly, I wish to heartily welcome our new
Board members – Board Chairperson Ms MoleshePakade, and Board members Ms Jojo and Ms Tys.
Their varied experiences and skills are set to take
our organisation to the highest trajectory. A special
thank you goes to the members of the Board for
their wise counsel and judicious support during the
period under review. The professionalism that the
Board displayed in the discharge of its
responsibilities continues to make ECLB the best
liquor regulator. Furthermore, I wish to express my
appreciation to the ECLB management and staff –
it is through their efforts that ECLB continues to
stand firm as an organisation of exceptional
calibre. Special thanks to all our stakeholders, for
their unwavering support and assistance in the
past year in helping ECLB to render an excellent
service to all its clients. I am grateful for the many
fruitful engagements we have had with our
stakeholders throughout the year. Thank you to our
Shareholder, the Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
for an indispensable role they continue to play in
providing necessary support and guidance to the
Entity. Lastly, a sincere word of thanks goes to our
Portfolio Committee for their professional
guidance and continuous efforts to instil a greater
sense of accountability.

_______________________________
Dr. N Makala
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial
statements audited by the Auditor-General.
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by
National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with GRAP standards
applicable to the public entity.
The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the
judgements made in this information.
The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control has
been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance
information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March
2020.

Yours faithfully

______
________________________
__
__
____________________________
Ms. NB Moleshe-Pakade
Chairperson of the Board
02 October 2020

_______________________________
Dr. N Makala
Acting Chief Executive Officer
02 October 2020
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
6.1 Vision
To be a reputable world class licencing authority, promoting a vibrant, sustainable and compliant liquor
industry.

6.2 Mission
To realise an ever growing, sustainable, and compliant industry that contributes to equity and the economy
of the province.

6.3 Values
VALUE
Transparency

BEHAVIOURAL DEMONSTRATION
The principle that the ECLB will conduct its business in an accessible, clear and visible
manner and that its activities are open to examination by its stakeholders.
Accountability
The principle that the organisation is obligated to demonstrate and take responsibility for
its actions, decisions and policies and that it is accountable to the public at large.
Customer centricity The principle that the organisation ensures that the customer is at the center of our
business's philosophy, operations or ideas.
Teamwork
Work down with an understanding and commitment to group goals on the part of all team
members.
Honesty
The quality, condition or characteristic of being fair, truthful, and morally upright in
conduct and adherence to the facts.
Fairness
The quality of being fair, free from bias or injustice.

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board (ECLB) is established in terms of the Eastern Cape Liquor Act 10
of 2003 (ECLA) as a regulatory body. The ECLB is a Schedule 3C public entity in terms of the
Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).
The main functions of the ECLB are to:
·
Regulate the registration of retail sales and micro-manufacturing of liquor in the province;
·
Encourage and support the liquor industry in the management and reduction of the socio-economic
and other costs of excessive alcohol consumption by creating an environment in which:
o
The entry of new participants into the liquor industry is facilitated;
o
Appropriate steps are taken against those selling liquor outside the regulatory framework;
o
To ensure that those involved in the liquor industry may attain and maintain adequate standards
of service delivery;
·
Facilitate participation by ward committees and communities in the consideration of applications for
registration certificates is provided for; and
·
To ensure that the particular realities confronting the liquor industry in the province can be
addressed.
The ECLB also discharges its mandate in terms of the following legislation amongst others:
·
Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998;
·
The Liquor Act 59 of 2003;
·
The Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999;
·
Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000;
·
Promotion of Administrative Justice Act 3 of 2000;
·
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act 5 of 2000;
·
Labour Relations Amendment Act 6 of 2014;
·
Companies Act 71 of 2008
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to
provide limited assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being
reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to page 80 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
2.1
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT
The ECLB receives applications for liquor licences which are processed as prescribed by the ECLA. It
is also the responsibility of the organization to monitor compliance of registered enterprises with
terms and conditions of licence as well as support liquor traders in various ways that may enable
them to participate meaningfully in profitable sectors of the industry and move to higher value chain
areas. The potential to accomplish this is dependent on the liquor traders understanding the
intricacies of the liquor industry, the relevant regulatory framework and business growth or expansion
opportunities.
The legislative framework further imposes an obligation on the licencing authorities, including the
ECLB, to issue licences mindful of the associated adverse effects hence interventions undertaken to
moderating abuse of alcohol in collaboration with other institutions.
Preclusion of liquor trading as a priority focus area at development finance institutions, which
prevents access to finance by marginalised liquor traders to grow and / or diversify their businesses.
Discussions have been held with Small Enterprise Finance Agency (SEFA) and Independent
Development Corporation (IDC) with the view for them to consider, as a starting point, applications
for funding of liquor traders who aspire to venture into higher levels of the industry value chain or
diversify their business beyond just selling liquor, namely logistics, warehousing, hospitality,
manufacturing and franchising.
Limiting legislation to enforce Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) compliance.
New Liquor legislation has been passed and is awaiting the approval of regulations before it is
implemented.
Minimal synchronization of priority focus areas by government institutions, which limits the
maximization of collaboration efforts. Partnerships with Small Enterprise Development Agency
(SEDA), South African Revenue (SARS) Services and Companies Intellectual Properties Commission
(CIPC) to implement education programmes around business registration and business and
individual tax have been forged. There is a plan to extend these collaborative efforts to other
government institutions and private sector.
Resistance by big manufacturers towards transformation of the industry. The ECLB has expressed
this concern to the National Liquor Authority (NLA) to address but there has been no tangible progress
felt, not only by ECLB, but also marginalised liquor traders in this regard. There seems to be a
dislocation of efforts by the ECLB and NLA in this regard.
Absence of Black participation in the micro manufacturing subsector of the liquor industry. Because
of the barriers to entry in the subsector, namely the technical knowledge which is a prerequisite and
access to financial resources /capital, the ECLB has engaged into discussions with the Nelson
Mandela University, National Youth Development Agency and existing micro manufacturers with the
view to structure a training programme to train Black youth to be brewmasters under the mentorship
of the existing micro manufacturers and acquire start-up funds to establish their businesses.
Encroachment of the Black liquor trader’s traditional township market by the big retail chain stores.
South African Local Government Association (SALGA) is to be approached to address compliance by
local municipalities to the BBBEE legislation when considering applications for property development
in areas of their relative jurisdiction.
In order to augment its limited capacity, the entity embarked on a concerted effort to mobilise
stakeholder partnerships for purposes of collaboration. Quite significantly, stakeholder support
provided ECLB with requisite capacity to achieve its objectives in some areas.
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2.1.1
·

18 of the 20 planned key performance targets for the year have been achieved.

2.1.2
·

·
·
·
·

·

·

·

·

Development and enforcement of by-laws, liquor licencing

The Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs in partnership with ECLB has developed
a standard Liquor Trading by-law Framework that is designed to assist municipalities develop
comprehensive municipal liquor trading by-laws. In term of Section 22 (2) (d) (i) of the Eastern Cape
Liquor Act No. 10 of 2003 (ECLB) ward councillors must upon receipt of a notice consult the
community of the area where the premises are situated and simultaneously submit a report to the
Board and the relevant municipal Council.
The ECLB has developed a program to engage the ward councillors on their role in the consideration
of liquor licence applications in their areas of jurisdiction.

2.1.5
·

Liquor Trader’s Development programme and transformation action plan

A total of 925 liquor traders were empowered in various Business Skills to assist them to run their
outlets effectively.
The entity facilitated the facilitated the formation an Eastern Cape Craft Brewers and Distillers
Association which consist of 12 members.
Facilitated participation by some of the registered liquor micro-manufacturers in the export
development programme run by the Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC)
3 craft brewers (Dockside; Table 58; Jeffrey’s Bay Craft Brewery) participated in the beer festival held
in Port Elizabeth.
Continued assisting cooperatives across the province with the view to setting them up as a step
towards being fully fledged wholesalers in future. More so with imminent implementation of the
BBBEE agenda. A partnership with SEDA has been very useful in this regard.
The entity is strongly advocating at the National Liquor Regulators Forum for the Department of Trade
and Industry to establish a liquor industry Charter.

2.1.4
·

Licencing

A total of 1 061 liquor licence applications were considered in the period under review and 607 of
those were approved as they met all the requirements. 368 applications were given section 22(5) due
to queries, 83 were refused and 3 were scheduled for public hearings.

2.1.3
·

Overall performance

The Responsible Trade Facilitation (RTF) programme

The programme is aimed at training and coaching liquor licence holders and outlet Managers to
comply with the relevant legislation and to trade more responsibly. RTF facilitators visit the outlets
fortnightly to train the licence-holder, audit the compliance and observe for any non-complying
behaviours. Outlets are scored accordingly, and those that reach certain compliance thresholds are
rewarded with incentive upgrades aimed at making the outlets more compliant and safer.
The project is funded by the Association for Alcohol Responsibility and Education (Aware.org) and
executed by Sekika Solutions with support from the ECLB. Aware.org, previously known as the
Industry Association for Responsible Alcohol Use (ARA), established “to reduce alcohol related harm
by creating awareness and performing ongoing research, providing effective collaboration with our
partners.”
Aware.org has invested a total amount of R4 833 330 for implementation of RTF in the Eastern Cape
Province in this period. The programme was first piloted for a period of 12 months at 180 liquor
outlets in East London and Queenstown in April 2018 - March 2019 period. In the last financial year,
April 2019 - March 2020 the programme roll-out was extended to 180 outlets spread across East
London, King Williams Town, Butterworth, Idutywa, Stutterheim and Peddie.
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2.1.6
·

·

·

Code of Conduct for liquor traders

Having noted the failure of registered persons to maintain their outlets in pristine condition and
occurrence of negative incidences within their premises leading to the unwanted scourge of liquorrelated criminal incidents in and around their liquor outlets as well as the intolerable inconsiderate
trading, the ECLB crafted a Code of Conduct for Liquor Traders to provide guidance on how best liquor
traders may conduct their business without upsetting the tranquility existing within the communities
they are operating.
The non-compliance with the provisions of the Liquor Act and trading conditions attached to the
registration certificates of registered outlets present further challenges for law enforcement as
inconsiderate trading tends to lead to all these other criminal incidents. With the assistance of funding
from Distell the ECLB is enabled to roll out the Code of Conduct which aims to promote responsible
trading throughout the Province of the Eastern Cape.
The funding for the project was received from Distell in June 2018, which was to procure educational
material including posters, flyers and brochures as well as procure venues to hold these sessions,
refreshments for the attendees, travel and accommodation of officials facilitating these sessions.

2.1.7 Responsible drinking education and awareness interventions
·

·

·

·

·

·
·

In partnership with Department of Education and Aware.org underage drinking was introduced in
the school curriculum so that young people can be educated about the risks inherent in the
consumption of alcohol at an early age. This programme was piloted in eight (8) schools; four in
Zwelitsha and four in Peddie.
The four universities in the Eastern Cape were targeted to promote responsible alcohol
consumption among students, and various campuses were reached with responsible consumption
messages.
The entity effectively facilitated community-based intervention initiatives that sought to raise
awareness among community members on the harmful effects of excessive consumption of
alcohol and promotion of responsible trading. As part of the community-based interventions,
pregnant women were also targeted with a view of raising awareness on the dangers of Fetal
Alcohol Syndrome (FAS).
Furthermore, as part of celebrating the National Sobriety Week and International FAS Day, an FAS
awareness campaign was conducted in Bathurst Township in Port Alfred, educating women and the
community at large about the dangers of drinking alcohol during pregnancy.
Various Road Safety / Drunken driving Campaigns were conducted in partnership with the Provincial
Road Safety, South African Police Services (SAPS) and Department of Social Development in
Idutywa, Mthatha and Butterworth. During the Road Safety campaigns, promotional material
carrying messages on the dangers of drunken driving, FAS, responsible drinking and trading were
handed out to motorists, passengers, pedestrians and community members.
A total number of 68 893 people were reached through anti-alcohol abuse awareness and education
initiatives.
During the implementation of the education and awareness initiatives, media were also mobilised
through media alerts and releases and positive media coverage was received.

2.1.8 Challenges encountered and Gorrective Wteps
·

·

The entity, in particular, Social Accountability programme lacks requisite capacity to undertake
baseline and post assessments to determine the need for interventions and their impact thereof.
This is an important area for all the interventions as it will strengthen cases for intervention and
further account for its impact/meaningfulness. Partnerships formed with institutions of higher
learning and industry, continue to mobilise more stakeholder support for future research studies as
well as engage the Research programme from DEDEAT.
Ongoing litigation challenges were encountered and there are controls in place to ensure that the
decision-making process of management and the Board is defendable.
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2.2 ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
·

·

ECLB is experiencing human capital challenges more specifically for compliance monitoring and
enforcement as well as, social accountability programmes (e.g. there are 16 Inspectors who have to
enforce compliance throughout the province) however this is partially mitigated through
strengthened stakeholder relations and utilisation of internship programmes in some divisions.
The continuing budget shrinks over the year’s limits the entity’s capacity to deliver on its mandate.
Consequently, opportunities continue to be sought for efficiencies in processes, various revenue
enhancement strategies and collaborations with NGO’s, government departments, liquor industry
and institutions of higher learning

2.3 KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
A new Act, the Eastern Cape Liquor Authority Act 4 of 2018 has been asserted to and published in the
Provincial Government Gazette No. 4204 on 11 March 2019. Its aim is to address gaps and challenges
with the current legislation. The date of implementation of this Act has not yet been announced. DEDEAT
and the ECLB are in the process of drafting Liquor Regulation in line with the new Act.
The objects of this Act are –
(a) to give effect to the constitutional mandate of the Province regarding the licensing, regulation and
control of retail sale and micro-manufacturing of liquor;
(b) to provide mechanisms that ensure the compliance and enforcement of this Act and the licence
conditions;
(c) to provide mechanisms aimed at reducing socio-economic and other effects of alcohol abuse;
(d) to promote the development of a responsible and sustainable retail and micro-manufacturing liquor
industry in a manner that facilitates (i) the entry of new participants into the industry;
(ii) diversity of ownership in the industry; and
(iii) an ethos of social responsibility in the industry.
The new Act provides for additional responsibilities relating to the overall operations of the entity and the
implementation of the new Act will have huge financial implications for the entity.

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS
Tabled below are the strategic goals and strategic objectives that guide the organisation on delivering on its
mandate.
Strategic Goal
Strategic objective short title
Community protection
Efficient Licensing
from irresponsible liquor
trading.
Transformation and
Empowerment of liquor traders
growth of the liquor
industry

Community protection
Pre-registration assessment
from irresponsible liquor
trading.
Compliance monitoring and
enforcement
Community health, education
and awareness
Good Corporate
Governance

Good corporate governance
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Strategic objective statement
To process all fully compliant liquor applications
within the timeframe prescribed by the Act.
To facilitate the implementation of programmes
geared towards the empowerment of
marginalised liquor traders to acquire business
skills and knowledge, grow their businesses,
move up the value chain in the liquor industry and
trade responsibly.
To ensure that only fully compliant applications
for registration are processed.
To take appropriate steps against those selling
liquor outside the regulatory framework of the
Eastern Cape Liquor Act 10 2003.
To contribute to reducing the adverse effects of
excessive alcohol consumption by educating
communities about dangers of alcohol abuse
To enable adherence to good corporate
governance practices through the provision of
systems

4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
4.1 LICENCING PROGRAMME
4.1.1 Purpose of the programme
The Licencing programme is responsible for:Administration for processing of liquor licence applications and renewal of licences.
Monitor the running of the Snapstar Licencing System.
Secretariat for the Licencing Committee.
Implementation of the Liquor Traders Development Programme.

·
·
·
·

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: The following strategic objectives guide the performance of the Licencing to
achieve the desired outcomes:
a) Efficient Licencing – To process all fully compliant liquor applications within the timeframe
prescribed by the Act.
b) Empowerment of liquor traders - To facilitate the implementation of programmes geared
towards the empowerment of marginalised liquor traders to acquire business skills and
knowledge, grow their businesses, move up the value chain in the liquor industry and trade
responsibly.

KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Performance
Comment on
Target
Actual
Achievement Achievement Achievement
Achievement
Indicator
deviations
2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/ 2020 2019/ 2020 Achievement
for 2019/
2020
Percentage of
66%
70%
69%
100%
93%
7%
Delayed
fully compliant
processing of
liquor licence
applications due
applications
to queries and
considered
late submission
within 60
of inspector’s
working days.
report.
Number of
1
1
1
1
3
2
Processes
new formal
completed
traders’
earlier than
associations
anticipated
facilitated.
Number of
702
916
957
900
925
25
Oversubscription
liquor traders
due to demand
empowered in
for trainings
the province
annually.

4.1.2

Programme performance

The next sections outline progress that has been made in the period under review in respect of the
performance indicators as outlined in the table above.

4.1.2.1

Licence applications received

A total of 882 applications were received in the period under review. 879 applications were published within
7 days while only 3 application missed the deadline.
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TYPE OF APPLICATION
New registrations
Transfers
Removals
Total

4.1.2.2
·

NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS
722
148
12
882

Manager’s appointment applications

2 460 manager’s appointment applications were received processed and certificated issued.

MANAGERS APPOINTMENTS
2018/19 AND 2019/20

2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0

4.1.2.3

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

Total

2018/19

180

161

214

209

144

204

230

206

202

193

198

309

2450

2019/20

175

137

210

159

137

240

207

372

196

229

180

218

2460

Applications considered

The percentage of fully compliant licences processed within 60 days comprises of applications submitted
to the Licencing Committee. The number of days is calculated from the date of inspection to the date of
the Licencing Committee for consideration. A total of 1061 applications were considered by the Licencing
Committee in the period under review. The graph below shows the applications considered.
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The outcomes are as follows:-

·
·
·
·

607 applications were approved;
83 applications were refused ;
368 applications were given section 22(5) and
3 application was scheduled for hearing.

Of the 1 061; 734 applications were considered for the first time. Of the 734 applications considered for
the first time 684 were considered within 60 days (93%) while 50 were outside 60 days. Factors
contributing to inability to meet timeframes are inter alia delayed responses from the applicants on
queries. The reasons for queries are as follows:
·
Insufficient information provided by the applicant, as a result additional information is requested.
·
Insufficient community consultation by ward councillors.
·
Delayed response by third parties (ward councillors, applicants and South African Police Service) to
requests made to validate or provide information
·
Delayed quality checking due to high volume of submissions for consideration and processing.
4.1.2.4 Special Events

·

86 special events certificates were issued and the figure is included in the figure for approved
applications.

SPECIAL EVENTS COMPARISON
2018/19 AND 2019/20
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

4 .1.2.4

April

May

June

July

August

October

6

Septemb
er
8

2018/19

9

4

10

2

2019/20

10

4

8

6

Decembe
r
19

January

10

Novemb
er
11

3

8

February

March

Total

2

4

9

94

12

4

23

1

5

2

86

Licence Renewals

The number of active liquor licences that was expected to renew during the period under review was 7 552.
However, one registrant failed to pay the registration fee within the prescribed period as the result the
registration was cancelled. A revised total amount of registrants expected to renew was 7 551 and 564 of
those failed to renew. Liquor licences renewed in the period under review with the payments up to end of
February totals to 6 987 and can be categorised as follows: ·
Off consumption – 1 110
·
On Consumption – 1 318
·
On & Off Consumption – 4 542
·
Micro Manufacturing – 17
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4.1.2.5

Micro – manufacturing licences

There were 17 registered Micro – Manufacturing licences as at 31 March 2020. The table below displays
the name of business, where it operates, and the type of liquor manufactured.
List of micro manufacturers
NO

BUSINESS NAME

TOWN

TYPE OF LIQUOR

1

African Cures

Port Elizabeth

Sherry (ingredient for medication)

2

The Little Brewery On The River

Port Alfred

Malt Based Beer

3

Graaff Reinet Museum

Graaff Reinet

Spirits (Witblits)

4

Theescomb Wines

Port Elizabeth

Wine

5

Bridge Street Brewery

Port Elizabeth

Beer and Cider

6

Emerald Vale Brewery

East London

Malt Based Beer

7

Southern Wind Trading

East London

16 Alcoholic Fruit Beverage

8

Dockside Brewery

Port Elizabeth

Beer

9

Tsitsikama Micro Brewery

Storms River

Beer (ale)

10

Richmondhill Brewing Company

Port Elizabeth

Beer

11

Daxi’s Craft Brewery

East London

Malt Based Beer

12

Featherstone Brewery

Grahamstown

Malt Based Beer

13

Jeffreys Bay Craft Brewery

Jeffrey’s Bay

Beer

14

J Bay Brewing Company

Jeffrey’s Bay

Beer

15

Brickmaker Distillery Co

Port Elizabeth

“Rhino – Rum”

16

Table 58 Micro Brewing

East London

Beer

17

Hogsback Brewery

Hogsback

Beer

18

Black Hog

St Francis

Beer

4.1.2.6 Liquor traders development programme
i.

Number of new formal traders’ associations facilitated

Three new formal traders were facilitated to be registered as Non Profit Organisations with Companies
and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC):o Mzamba
o Keiskamahoek
o KwaNobuhle
ii.

Number of liquor traders empowered in the province annually

Liquor Traders Association were empowered with Business skills. The following sessions were held:#
1.

TRAINING INTERVENTION

AREA /TOWN
Mzamba Liquor Traders
Association
KwaNobuhle Liquor Traders
East London
Queenstown
Port Elizabeth

Business Tax and Company Registration

2.

Food and safety awareness

3.

Co-operatives education and Company registration
Workshop

4.

East London
King William’s Town
Business Information and Advisory Services workshop
Mdantsane
King William’s Town

Mzamba
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NO OF ATTENDEES

42
25
174
92
156

21
43
22
35
36

#
5.

TRAINING INTERVENTION

AREA /TOWN
Queenstown
Queenstown
Port Elizabeth
East London
Port Elizabeth
Mthatha

Business Advisory on Wills and Estates

6.

Presentation for wine and distributors by VINPRO

7.

Information sharing on Food and Safety Awareness
TOTAL

iii.

NO OF ATTENDEES
48
110
40
10
15
56
925

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There was underperformance in relation to one planned indicator, i.e. Licences processed within 60
working days. To ensure achievement of this indicator a pipeline of outstanding applications is reviewed
monthly to monitor progress of each application. Monthly reports are produced and action to be taken is
forecasted by this monitoring tool.
4.1.2.7 Changes to planned targets
There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.
4.1.2.8 Linking performance with budgets
Programme
Licencing
Total

Budget
R’000
6 696
6 696

Actual Expenditure
R’000
6 693
6 693
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(Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
3
3

4.2 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMME
4.2.1 Purpose of the programme
The principal responsibility of the Compliance and Enforcement Programme is to ensure that appropriate
steps are taken against those selling liquor outside the administrative and regulatory framework
established in terms of the ECLA and that community considerations on the registration of retail premises
are taken into account. In this regard, working with other law enforcement agencies, the programme plays
a critical role towards achieving the goal of a responsible liquor trading in the Eastern Cape that promotes
safe communities.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: The following strategic objectives guide the performance of the Compliance
and Enforcement programme to achieve the desired outcomes:
a) Pre-registration assessment (short description)
§ To ensure that only fully compliant applications for registration are processed.
b) Compliance monitoring and enforcement (short description)
§ To take appropriate steps against those selling liquor outside the regulatory framework of the
Eastern Cape Liquor Act 10 2003.
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Performance
Comment on
Target
Actual
Achievement Achievement Achievement
Achievement
Indicator
deviations
2016/2017
2017/2018
2018/2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 Achievement
for
2019/2020
Number of
883
917
1 022
600
931
+331 The
preregistration
additional
compliance
inspections
inspections
conducted in
conducted
pursuance of
the
application
pipeline.
Number of
6 855
7 123
5 678
5 000
5 071
+71 Variance is as
compliance
a result of a
monitoring
response to
inspections
complaints
conducted
received
Number of
423
536
644
500
586
+86 Variance is
outlets trading
due to more
in liquor
reported
without valid
illegal trading
registration
by
identified and
communities
referred to the
as well as
Criminal
improved
Justice
relations with
System
the SAPS and
more POE
being
submitted.
Number of
59
53
60
40
74
+34 Variance is
blitz
due to the
operations
response to
conducted
attend to
with law
illegal liquor
enforcement
traders and to
agencies to
attend to
enforce liquor
inconsiderate
legislation
trading.
Percentage of
87%
84%
88%
75%
65%
- 10% During the
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KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Performance
Comment on
Target
Actual
Achievement Achievement Achievement
Achievement
Indicator
deviations
2016/2017
2017/2018
2018/2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 Achievement
for
2019/2020
complaints
three quarters
attended
of the
within 30 days
financial year
inspectors
had a
problem to
connect to
the
Complaints
Management
System and
this delayed
our response
time.

4.2.2 Programme performance
The next sections outline progress that has been made in the period under review in respect of the
performance indicators as outlined in the table above.

4.2.2.1

Preregistrations compliance inspections

These inspections are conducted for all applications that are received for registration. A preregistration
compliance inspection is conducted between 30 and 37 days after the application has been received.
·
The ECLA, which regulates the retail sales of liquor in the Province of the Eastern Cape, prescribes
that no person may sell liquor unless that person is registered in terms of the Act. The Act further
prescribes a process that must be followed and complied with for any person to be registered to sell
liquor to the public.
·
The application must be verified for authenticity and amongst other aspects of that verification is the
verification of the documents submitted with the application. Such documents include, amongst
others, the structural plan and description of the premises to be used for the retail sale of liquor as
well as proof of community consultation.
·
Community consultation is critical to ensure that the community is well informed of the pending
application for the retail of liquor in their vicinity and to enable them to file objections against the
application, if there are any, or representations in support of the application.
·
Verification further assists to determine if there are any, or no, educational institutions or places of
worship within a 100m radius from the proposed liquor outlet, which the applicant would have notified
of the application in terms of the Act. The Act requires that an applicant serves a notice to the ward
committee of the area where the proposed liquor outlet will be situation. The ward committee is then
expected to convene a community wherein he/she informs the community of the pending application
and thereafter compile a report on such consultation which should then be submitted to the municipal
Council and to the Board for consideration. Verification of this consultation is to ensure that the
correct community members who would be affected by the outlet were properly consulted.
·
There is a significant positive variance of 331 resulting from applications that became due for
inspection during the period under review. Preregistration inspections are conducted based on the
number of applications that become due for inspection, therefore the excess figure entirely depends
on the number of applications received by the ECLB. All applications received by the ECLB are
inspected and verified for authenticity, suitability of premises for the type of business applied for and
to certify that communities are indeed consulted regarding the pending application.
·
The distribution of the inspections conducted by the ECLB is fairly balanced throughout the province
ranging between 9 and 15% of the total inspections conducted as depicted in the graph below, with
Nelson Mandela Metro leading with 144 of those inspections and Joe Gqabi recording the lowest at
83.
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Compliance monitoring and post-registration compliance inspections

These inspections are conducted at registered liquor outlets. The programme posted a positive
variance of 79 due to effective monitoring of outlets and as a response to complaints received.
The ECLB once it has issued a registration certificate continues to conduct compliance monitoring at
registered liquor outlets to monitor their compliance with the provisions of the Act and the trading
conditions issued in terms of the Act. Section 9(c) read with Section 25(1)(b)(iii) of the Act empowers
to issue registration certificate and determine conditions upon which the registration was issued.
Where an outlet is found to be conducting business in contravention of the Act and the attached
trading conditions the inspector may issue a compliance notice giving the liquor outlet a period of
time to remedy the situation and upon the failure of which the Board may consider steps to suspend
or revoke such registration.
Below is the graphical presentation showing the footprint of the inspections conducted in the
province as well as instances of non-compliance where compliance notices were issued in terms of
Section 54 of the Act:
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The graphical representation above shows the preponderance of non-compliance which is met with
issuing Compliance Notices in terms of Section 54 of the Act and in this instance where 441 liquor
outlets were found to have transgressed the legislation, regulations and trading conditions.
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·

A Section 54 Compliance Notice is issued when an inspector discovers non-compliance at the time
of the inspection at the registered liquor outlet and is issued to the registered person. However, the
non-compliance rate is at about 9% with 441 compliance notices issued to non-compliant registered
liquor traders. Below the instances of non-compliance are noted and displayed hereunder in the
graphical presentation.
o
It will be noted that most businesses are failing to comply with Section 40 of the Act which
requires that registered persons appoint managers to be responsible for their business in their
absence. Section 40(5) provides that a person managing and responsible for a business to which
a registration relates, must be subject to the same obligations and liabilities as the relevant
registered person. Subsection 6 further states that the registered person is not however released
from any obligation or liability to which he or she is subject to in law.

Failure to comply with Section 40 of the Act, which requires that a manager to be appointed to
be responsible for the registered premises, is the most leading non-compliance with about 270
compliance notices issued that comprise about 61% of all non-compliant incidences and that is
followed by failure to comply with trading conditions at 30%.
Another graphical presentation below, in relation to the categories of registration, indicates which
category tends to be closely monitored the most and that about 65% of our resources on postregistration compliance monitoring is spent on retails sales for consumption on and off the premises
where liquor is sold.

o

·
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This is the registration category which is more applied for by business operating as taverns and most of
those are situated in residential areas and therefore have to be closely monitored to limit possible
nuisances that are likely tpo emanate from such establishments.
·
The Act provides that the entity needs to create an environment in which appropriate steps are taken
against those selling liquor outside the administrative and regulatory framework established in terms
of the Act.

4.2.2.3

·

·

There are people that engage on illegal trading in liquor and to address such illegal activities they are
identified, confirmed as not having been registered and then referred to the SAPS to be prosecuted
for criminal liability. They are either issued with admission of guilt fines (J534) or case docket opened
and their cases presented to court for conviction.
In the year under review 610 persons operating illegal liquor trading outlets were referred to the
criminal justice system for prosecution:
o
406 illegal liquor traders were issued with the Notice to Appear in Court with an option to pay a
fine (J534) amounting in total to R375 200;
o
70 criminal cases were opened and these cases are pending finalization in court and 134 Section
19 Notices were issued.
o
Liquor to the value of about R2 237 428 has been confiscated from these illegal outlets and will
be disposed of once the criminal proceedings have been finalized. One illegal liquor outlet was
found to have liquor to the value of R2 m and is suspected of illegally distributing to other liquor
outlets. The case is still pending in court.

4.2.2.4
·

·

Number of identified persons trading in liquor without valid registration referred to
SAPS.

Blitz Operations

The ECLB embarks on strategic crime prevention programmes targeted at non-compliant,
inconsiderate trading liquor outlets and those that trade in liquor without being registered through
blitz operations in collaboration with the law enforcement agencies.
There are 29 more blitz operations conducted than targeted and the reason for the excess can be
attributed to the partnership of the ECLB and the SAPS. The ECLB is a member of the Justice Crime
Prevention Strategy and as such participates in the national crime prevention programmes aimed at
reducing criminal activity which is intensified over the Festive Season and randomly throughout the
year.
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4.2.2.5
·

·

·

·

Complaints Management

The ECLB receives a significant number of
complaints relating to and against liquor outlets
operating with various communities as these tend to
be disturbing the peace and quiet within
communities. The institution deemed it necessary to
have these recorded with the aim to play a role in
assisting with their resolution should they be outside
the ambit of ECLB. However, it has proven difficult to
have these resolved as most of these are outside the
competency of the ECLB and fall within the ambits of
local government and the SAPS. The ECLB refers
such complaints to the relevant institution for
resolution. The ECLB thus records the attendance of
such complaints once an investigation commences
to verify the complaint and have them referred, which
must take place within 30 days.
To assist in this regard the ECLB enlisted the
services of a call centre to receive these complaints
and provide a complaints management system to
enable the monitoring and management of the
processes relating to complaints filed. The toll free
service has been working well to help communities
to forward their complaints for attendance by
inspectors who conduct investigations and ensure
that those that are to be referred to the relevant
institutions are in fact referred.
In the period under review 235 complaints were
received and 153 were attended to within 30 days
which translates to 65%. Of significance is that
complaints relating to the conduct of liquor outlets
are attended to within a reasonable time (30 days).
The presentation below shows complaints by their
types .
Below is the graphical presentation showing the
number of complaints that usually received and one
would notice the highest numbers relate to
complaints that outside the purview of the ECLB. The
complaints that relate to public nuisance are referred
to the local municipalities and the metros as these
are as per Section 156(1) of the Constitution of the
Republic fo South Africa, which provides that a
municipality has executive authority in respect of,
and has the right to administer the local government
matters listed in Part B of Schedule 4 and Part B of
Schedule 5. For present purposes the Part B of
Schedule 4 provides for, amongst others, trading
regulations, which would determine the trading times
and related matters for liquor outlets and Part B of
Schedule 5 provides for, amongst others, (especailly
those related to the types of complaints received by
the Board), control of public nuisance, control of
undertakings that sell liquor to the public, noise
pollution, traffic and parking. These are highlighted
as they constitute the bulk of the complaints
received by the ECLB and yet the ECLB has no
mandate on the regulation of these aspects.
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As seen above, of the 153 complaints received during the period under review, 65%, relate to public
nuisance (noise disturbance and trading times) highlighting a critical gap in the enforcement of
municipal by-laws. In this regards the ECLB is engaging with the municipalities to have the situation
improved.
With regards to suspected illegal outlets some of these have led to the arrests and prosecutions as
reported above.

4.2.2.6

Plan to engage municipalities in the development and enforcement of by-laws and
liquor licencing

In term of Section 22 (2) (d) (i) of the ECLA ward councillors must upon receipt of a notice consult the
community of the area where the premises are situated and simultaneously submit a report to the Board
and the relevant municipal Council. Based on this provision the ECLB has developed a program to engage
the ward councillors on their role in the consideration of liquor licence application in their areas of
jurisdiction.
A program to engage local municipalities that involves SAPS was undertaken in the current financial year.
In this regard below is the detail on the implementation of the program:

40

DATES
11 June 2019
27 August 2019

03 September 2019
16 September 2019
10 October 2019
17 October 2019

Date to be confirmed

14 March 2020

26 March 2020

MUNICIPALITIES
Nelson Mandela Metro

PROGRAM
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence applications
Intsika Yethu Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence application and firming up liquor trading bylaws
Dr Beyers Naude Local Municipality Development of comprehensive liquor trading-by-laws
Mbizana Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of
licence applications
Mzimvubu Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of
licence applications
Blue Crane Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence applications as well as strengthening liquor
trading by-laws
Enoch Mgijima Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence applications as well as strengthening liquor
trading by-laws
Ndlambe Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence applications as well as strengthening liquor
trading by-laws
Koukamma Local Municipality
Role of ward councillors in the consideration of liquor
licence applications as well as strengthening liquor
trading by-laws1. This program to take place in the
current financial year

Whilst the session that was planned for Koukamma Local Municipality did not take place due to the
incidence of the Corona pandemic the program will continue into the new financial year to ensure that all
municipalities have been reached.

4.2.2.7
·

·

·

Plan to reduce illegal trading in the province

The program to reduce illegal liquor trading in the Province in clearly articulated in our Annual
Performance Plans which entails conducting compliance inspections throughout the province and
blitz operations in collaboration with other law enforcement agents.
Over and above the plan presented here-above the ECLB is training and designating SAPS and
Municipal Police as Liquor Inspectors. ECLB participates in all SAPS operation across the province
targeting illegal liquor trading.
The training and appointment of SAPS and other law enforcement agencies as Liquor Inspectors in
terms of Section 46 of the Easter Cape Liquor Act (No.10 of 2003) enhances our capacity to regulate
liquor trading in the Province. Below is a table depicting training conducted.

4.2.2.8

Training of SAPS Officers

DATES
9 July 2019
9 July 2019
26 November 2019
27 November 2019
TOTAL

4.2.2.9

SAPS CLUSTER
Mthatha
KSD Municipal Police
Nelson Mandela Metro Law Enforcement Officers
Mt Road, Motherwell, Humansdorp Clusters

NUMBERS
72
22
57
30
181

Code of Conduct for liquor traders

The ECLB is enabled by the assistance of funding from Distell to roll out the Code of Conduct for liquor
traders which aims to promote responsible trading throughout the Province of the Eastern Cape. The
funding for the project was received from Distell in June 2018, which was to procure educational material

1

The last session could not be held due to Covid-19 lockdown.
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including posters, flyers and brochures as well as procure venues to hold these sessions, refreshments for
the attendees, travel and accommodation of officials facilitating these sessions.
The sessions were initially planned to take place within the boundaries of the six (6) district municipalities
and the two (2) Metros in the Province and were to be rolled out per clusters as defined by the SAPS
operational areas. Travelling was a bit of a challenge for most of the liquor traders and thus the sessions
are now localized per town. The programme is well-received, albeit turnout was not as anticipated
The programme faced some challenges that affected the turnout of liquor traders at the planned sessions.
The vastness of the areas covered was one the most serious challenge as the Province is sparsely
populated in certain areas and therefore liquor traders have long distances to travel to venues. Workers’
strikes and/or civil unrests also pose a threat, as in Mthatha the session has had to change the venue when
municipal employees went on strike. It was further impossible to leave notices redirecting people to the
alternative venue due to the nature of the unrest. Most liquor traders are subsistence traders more than
being commercial and therefore operate small outlets that they do not leave to other persons to operate.
The effect is that they do not attend these sessions as they cannot afford to have their outlets closed.
To address these challenges, in association with the liquor traders forum/associations, sessions are now
planned to be localized to minimize travelling for liquor traders and to bring the session much closer to
where they are and to minimize on the disturbance with stock delivery days. This is intended to ensure we
reach most of the liquor traders and especially those subsistence traders who happen to be part of the
inconsiderate trading challenges. Local media, especially community radio, will also be heavily employed
to broadcast these sessions and invite liquor traders to attend.
The Code of Conduct programme is well received by liquor traders and they have also alluded that a lot of
information has been learnt regarding issues of compliance and their social responsibility to the
communities they serve. These sessions also play a critical role in sharing information on the new liquor
legislation that has been signed into law earlier in 2019 and which will be implemented soon. The sessions
were held as per table below. The data include all the information from the inception of the programme.
DATE
SESSION
HELD
14-Nov-18
15-Nov-18
12-Feb-19
13-Feb-19
14-Feb-19
26-Feb-19
27-Feb-19
19-Jun-19
13-Aug-19
27-Aug-19
26-Sep-19
23-Oct-19
25-Feb-20
26-Feb-20

DISTRICT
MUNICIPALITY
Alfred Nzo
OR Tambo
Sarah Baartman
Sarah Baartman
Nelson Mandela
Bay Metro
Amathole
Buffalo City
Metro
Alfred Nzo
Chris Hani
Buffalo City
Metro
Sarah Baartman
Sarah Baartman
Sarah Baartman
Chris Hani

TOWN/CENTRE ATTENDANCE

%
NO. OF BLACK
PARTICIPANTS BLACK

NO. OF
%
FEMALE
FEMALE
ATTENDEES
34
41%
35
70%
14
45%
14
31%
11
29%

Maluti
Mthatha
Grahamstown
Jeffrey’s Bay
Uitenhage

83
50
31
45
38

82
50
31
34
31

99%
100%
100%
76%
82%

Butterworth
King William’s
Town
Bizana
Queenstown
Mdantsane

61
68

61
68

100%
100%

17
24

28%
35%

47
101
86

47
97
86

100%
96%
100%

19
36
41

40%
36%
48%

Port Alfred
Graaff-Reinet
Somerset East
Cradock
TOTAL

31
15
19
10
685

27
14
15
8
651

87%
93%
79%
80%
95%

12
3
13
2
275

39%
20%
68%
20%
40%

4.2.2.10 Responsible Trade Facilitation (RTF) Programme
·

·

The Responsible Trade Facilitation (RTF) programme conducted in partnership with Aware.org is
aimed at training and coaching liquor licence holders and outlet Managers to comply with the relevant
legislation and to trade more responsibly. RTF facilitators visit the outlets fortnightly to train the
licence-holder, audit the compliance and observe for any non-complying behaviours.
The ECLB has fully supported the project by assisting with the location of outlets, updates to
legislation, feedback on compliance performance and providing guidance.
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·

·

The health check, derived from the applicable legislation, consists of 61 compliance points divided
into 4 categories against which an outlet is scored. The table below indicates the improvement in the
Overall.
Health Check Score for the 180 outlets since the programme commenced (baseline) until 31 March
2019.
The habitual
The basic physical
application of the
The availability of
and organisational
requirements and
the documentation Weighted
structures specified
processes of the
specified by the
Average
by the legislation
Score
legislation e.g.
legislation e.g. valid
e.g. up-to-date fire
provision of free
licence certificate
extinguisher
drinking water
Practice
Infrastructure
Documentation
Overall
43%
28%
38%
50%
55%
50%
41%
73%

The licence
holder's/manager's
understanding of the
applicable legislation
Date
Baseline
31 Mar 20

Training & Education
57%
85%

Progress to date of leading indicators of compliance is tabulated below.

·

·
·

·

During Facilitators outlet visits (weekdays 9H00 – 18H30) any non-complying behaviours is observed,
recorded and scored. The non-compliances are then addressed with the Licence-Holder and/or
Manager. The cumulative observation score has improved from 89% to 93% measured over 1 443
unique visits. Additionally, the standard deviation has decreased from 0.091 to 0.029 suggesting
greater consistency in compliant behaviours.
A total of 414 consumers were educated and engaged on alcohol harm or misuse.
The Provincial Legislature identified Qonce High School in King Williams Town as a security risk, due
to several liquor outlets operating within the school’s vicinity. The ECLB and RTF partnered with local
liquor outlets and suppliers to sponsor a CCTV camera system for the school. Since implementation
in January 2020, no further security incidents have been reported by the school.
RTF has started rolling out infrastructure upgrade to liquor outlets to improve compliance and safety.
The roll-out will be completed post-lockdown.
Month

Aug-19
Mar-20

RTF Centre

Registration
Serviced Fire
Certificate
Extinguishers
Available
79%
0%
97%
4%

Outlet Files

Outlet Name
Board
0%
0%

East London
King Williams Town

97%
99%

RTF Centre
East London
King Williams Town

Safety Signs
95%
99%

Male &
Female
Toilets
65%
84%

Working
CCTV
21%
62%

Outlet Emergency
Evacuation
File
Contact
Form 20
Plan
Available
List
0%
0%
7%
0%
100%
98%
18%
16%

Tier 1 Progress
RT
Licence
Message
Frames
0%
98%
1%
97%

Table
Cloth
69%
97%

Tier 2 Progress
Fire Extinguishers
Drinking Water

Pledge
Poster
1%
0%

Emergency
Contact List
92%
100%

First Aid Boxes
78%
90%

Tier 3 Progress
RTF Centre
East London
King Williams Town

CCTV
21%
12%

Lighting
76%
75%
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Enviro Loos
0%
0%

Positive feedback has been received from the Licence-Holders, liquor Forums and South African Police
Services (SAPS) in support for the project. See illustration below.
Koke’s Tavern in Dimbaza installed their own
signage to alert customers about weapons

In line with programme learnings,
Senzeni Tavern upgraded their toilets
from a tin structure to concrete

Gratitude for the rtf programme from
Mamjwarha’s Tavern

Positive feedback from KWT
SAPS

4.2.2.11 Opportunities
·
·
·

Project data will be formally correlated with ECLB Inspectors post
lockdown to identify gaps in compliance.
The feasibility of implementing CCTV cameras (sponsored by stakeholders) to deserving schools as
per the Qonce High School project will be investigated.
The infrastructure incentive upgrades will be completed post the lockdown.

A project sustainability audit with the ECLB will be conducted on the 2018 RTF outlet base.

4.2.3 Strategy to overcome areas of under performance
There was underperformance in relation to one performance indicator, i.e. complaints management and
remedial action has been taken to ensure timeous response to complaints.

4.2.4 Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to planned targets.

4.2.5 Linking performance with budget
Programme
Compliance and Enforcement
Total

Budget
R’000
23 027
23 027

Actual Expenditure
R’000
23 017
23 017
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(Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
10
10

4.3 SOCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY PROGRAMME
4.3.1

Purpose of the programme

The Social Accountability Programme is responsible for raising awareness and educating the public on the
adverse effects of alcohol consumption through Anti-Alcohol Abuse Awareness programmes. The
programme is largely informed by the research studies conducted by ECLB and other organisations as well
as reports that are sourced from other stakeholders (e.g. SAPS, Social Development and key NGOs) on the
prevalence of excessive consumption of alcohol in some areas of the Province. Social Accountability also
utilises information received from the Eastern Cape Liquor Board Inspectors who interact with various
communities during inspections and identify some areas that require urgent intervention.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: The following strategic objectives guide the performance of the Social
Accountability programme to achieve the desired outcomes:
a) Community health, education and awareness (short description)
§ To contribute towards reducing the adverse effects of excessive alcohol consumption by
educating communities about dangers of alcohol abuse
b) Building organisational reputation and image (short description)
§ To consistently build positive relations with the Eastern Cape communities so as to ensure that
they identify with the brand.
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Performance
Comment on
Actual
Achievement Achievement Achievement Target Achievement
Indicator
deviations
2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 Achievement
for
2019/2020
Number of
123
146
174
160
203
43
Overachievement
awareness
is due to more
interventions
stakeholder
conducted
collaborations
Number of
7
8
11
8
12
4
The variance in
social
the number of
responsibility
Social
interventions
Responsibility
conducted
programmes is
due to
collaborations
with various
stakeholders
Number of
24 437
25 437
55 947
56 000
68 514
12 514
Variance in the
people
number of
reached
people reached
through
is due to
awareness
partnerships that
interventions
ECLB has
established with
various
stakeholders

4.3.2

Programme performance

The next sections outline progress that has been made in the period under review in respect of the
performance indicators as outlined in the table above.
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4.3.2.1

Number of awareness programmes conducted

A total of 203 intervention initiatives were conducted in the period under review. The table below shows
the focus areas (with the target audience) that constituted awareness initiatives, and performance on each
of these focus areas is further detailed in the succeeding sections.
Underage
drinking/responsible
consumption
• In-school youth
• Out-of-school youth
• Communities
• University students

Responsible alcohol
consumption and
trading

Foetal Alcohol
Syndrome
• Pregnant women &
spouses
• Members of the
community

• Members of the
community
• Liquor traders
• Farm workers
• Workplaces –
employees

Drunken driving
• Drivers
• Pedestrians
• Community
members

Focus areas and target audience for education and awareness interventions
4.3.2.1.1

Sources of data for education and awareness interventions:

In the period under review, sources of data for the education and awareness interventions comprised the
following:
·
Socio-Economic Impact of liquor industry study in the Eastern Cape conducted in 2012, among other
things, indicates that 47% of learners reported to have tested alcohol. This finding served as an
illustration of the extent to which school-going youth consume alcohol and was used in the planning
for the underage drinking interventions.
·
Data sourced from Aware.org research programme shows that there is generally increase of alcohol
abuse among school-going youth in South Africa. This shows that schools are generally experiencing
a precipitous increase in underage drinking, which calls for concerted interventions. For example, in
the average South African home, 1 in every 2 teenagers is an active consumer of alcohol. In a recent
high school survey conducted, it was found that 49% of the learners interviewed had consumed
alcohol at some stage during their high school tenure. In the same high school survey conducted, it
came to light that 15% of the male learners and 8% of the female learners said that they had their first
drink before the age of 13.
·
Information that was received from the health facilities (clinics) and South African Police Services on
the reported cases attributed to alcohol abuse.
·
Special requests by some schools and community-based structures that experience alcohol abuse
on their premises. Furthermore, various stakeholders that work closely with schools provide valuable
information on the extent of alcohol abuse in schools, and this further informs ECLB’s interventions.
·
The Department of Education School Safety Programme provides information on schools that
experience alcohol-related problems, and during the period under review Social Accountability utilised
their database to identify some schools for intervention.
·
Social Development Teenage against Drug Abuse (TADA) Programme that works closely with schools
and they have significant information on the extent of drug and alcohol abuse on school premises.
·
Reports that are received from the liquor Inspectors on the prevalence of alcohol abuse in
communities that they serve.
·
Statistics from government institutions such as SAPS and public health facilities on the reported
cases relating alcohol.
·
Information from Road Accident Fund (RAF) and Road Safety Department on road accidents
attributable to alcohol abuse.
4.3.2.1.2

·

Underage drinking interventions

Underage drinking initiatives focused on schools as majority of underage people are found within the
school setting. While Social Accountability does not have adequate data on the prevalence of alcohol
consumption on school premises, the limited available evidence suggests that schools in general are
increasingly experiencing an upsurge in the consumption of alcohol among their learners.
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·

In the period under review, school-based campaigns on underage drinking were conducted in various
district municipalities, and these interventions included university-based interventions in the Eastern
Cape. The Table below illustrates the number of school-based interventions according to district
municipalities.

NO
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
Total

MUNICIPALITIES
Alfred Nzo District
Amathole District
Chris Hani District
Buffalo City Metro
Joe Gqabi District
Nelson Mandela Metro
OR Tambo District
Sarah Baartman District

NO. OF SCHOOLS REACHED
12
29
16
16
17
1
10
8
109

Total number of schools reached in all municipalities

·

·

During the period under review, Social Accountability rolled out school-based campaigns at schools
in the Nelson Mandela Metropolitan Municipality, Chris Hani Municipality, Joe Gqabi, Sarah Baartman
District Municipality, Alfred Nzo District Municipality, Buffalo City and Amatole District Municipality.
As part of the school-based intervention, various school-based activities were facilitated that included
debate, drama, sport and public speaking.
Social Accountability introduced a new concept of school-based ambassadors that was piloted in
Alfred Nzo (Mt. Ayliff), Amatole (Butterworth) and OR Tambo (Libode & Nqgeleni) District
Municipalities. The concept entailed the appointment of two learners from each school to be the
champions of the underage drinking in their respective schools.

Learners issued with certificates during ambassador launch at Mt Ayliff

·

The appointed learners are further provided with the necessary material that will enable them to
consistently convey messages on the dangers of underage drinking among their peers. They are also
tasked with the responsibility of monitoring and reporting on cases of alcohol consumption on school
premises in order to keep track of the prevalence of the habit and whether Social Accountability
interventions are yielding positive results. Subsequent to the launch of the concept, Social
Accountability will continuously receive progress report on monthly basis from each school. This will
ensure that alcohol abuse/use on school premises is monitored closely, and necessary interventions
are implemented with immediate effect.
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·

A new concept of Open Dialogue was also introduced and it was piloted in Chris Hani (Queenstown
& Engcobo). A total of ten schools from each municipality participated in the dialogues. This concept
is about creating a platform for learners to debate challenges of underage drinking in their respective
schools and communities and further propose intervention measures to alleviate this challenge. More
importantly, various stakeholders from the community and government departments participated in
these debates, and increasingly valuable ideas emerge from the debates that help in streamlining
further interventions and encouraging various stakeholders to play their role in curbing the escalation
of underage drinking.

Facilitation of a learner’s dialogue at Engcobo

·

·

·

Furthermore, this concept is intended to mobilise key stakeholders from each community to make
necessary interventions in the fighting the scourge of underage drinking, especially the parents within
their communities.
In partnership with Aware! Org, Social Accountability has developed a multi-pronged programme to
address underage drinking through the introduction of underage drinking as part of the school
curriculum. One element of the programme is the distribution of specially developed material aligned
to Curriculum and Assessment Policy Statement (CAPS) to schools for use in Life Orientation classes,
allied with support for the teachers via workshops and online support. A zero-rated content portal has
also been developed (www.awarefreewifi.co.za) to further assist the programmes and community at
large. The programme was piloted in eight (8) schools in Zwelitsha and Peddie respectively.
Furthermore, as part of the school interventions, Social Accountability in partnership with Aware.org
have introduced “It Starts Today” programme which has sought to take underage drinking messages
to parents, teachers, tavern owners, church leaders, local government structures and the rest of
society. This community engagement is aimed at helping reduce teenage alcohol consumption by
changing attitudes and providing information about the realities of alcohol abuse. It is also aimed at
inspiring the community to assist the youth to imagine and then attain a better tomorrow.

4.3.2.1.3

·
·

·

Foetal alcohol Syndrome

A total of five (5) clinics were visited in Uitenhage, and Jansenville with a view to educate women on
the dangers of drinking during pregnancy.
Social Accountability facilitated a Commemoration of the International Foetal Alcohol Syndrome day
in Bathurst Township in Port Alfred, educating women and the community at large about the dangers
of drinking alcohol during pregnancy.
Furthermore, Counselling and Motivational sessions for pregnant women and their families were
conducted in partnership with FASFacts and Social Development (Social Worker) in the Buffalo City
Metropolitan: The sessions comprised the following:
o
Screening for problematic substance abuse
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o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
4.3.2.1.4

·

·

·

·

·
·

·
·
·

Drunk Driving awareness campaign

Majority of road accidents are attributed to the excessive consumption of alcohol and data received
from the Road Accident Fund (RAF) indicate that alcohol abuse is one of the main contributing factors
to road fatalities in the Eastern Cape.
In the period under review, Social Accountability in partnership with the Provincial Road Safety and
municipalities embarked on road safety intervention initiatives.
Road safety campaigns mainly targeted the N2 between East London and Mthatha and R61 between
Mthatha and Port St Johns as they are regarded as among the deadliest National Roads in South
Africa.
In partnership with Road Safety, various road safety campaigns were conducted between East
London and Mthatha targeting taxi ranks, main intersections and road blocks
A community outreach campaign was conducted with the Department of Transport in Amalinda on
N2, the aim of the programme was to combat the scourge of drunken driving.
In collaboration with Amatole Road Safety and Department of Social Development two road blocks
were conducted on the N2, Ndabakazi Junction (Butterworth) and Collywobbles (Idutywa).

4.3.2.2
·

Community- based intervention initiatives:

In the period under review, community-based interventions were conducted with a view to educate
communities on the dangers of excessive consumption of alcohol, including responsible trading and
drinking, and drunken driving. In the period under review, community outreach programmes were
embarked upon to educate the community on responsible drinking and liquor trading.
Community outreach programmes were conducted in Buffalo City Metropolitan Municipality, Sarah
Baartman District Municipality, Nelson Mandela Metropolitan Municipality, Joe Gqabi district
Municipality, Amatole and OR Tambo District Municipality, which focused on raising awareness on
irresponsible liquor consumption and trading as well as educating road users about the dangers of
drunken driving.
In seeking to raise awareness against the scourge of Gender-Based Violence (GBV) , Social
Accountability in partnership with Heineken facilitated a Young Men’s Indaba in Humansdorp in Sara
Baartman to create a platform for young people to discuss mechanisms that can be adopted to
alleviate the GBV in communities, and further to emphasise the impact of alcohol abuse on
perpetuating GBV.
Similarly, Social Accountability in partnership with a local church facilitated a young couple’s session
in Buffalo City with a view to educate them about excessive consumption of alcohol and how it
exacerbates GBV.

4.3.2.1.5

·

Comprehensive assessment
Provide client feedback
Set goals for change
Provide advice for change
Referral to alternative treatment options
Monitoring
Family groups
Educational programmes on facts about alcohol and drug abuse
Parenting skills
Facilitation of involvement in self-help groups.

Number of social responsibility interventions conducted

During the period under review about 12 social responsibility programmes were facilitated that sought
to provide alternative to people of the Eastern Cape, especially young people. One of the findings of
the Socio-economic research that the Eastern Cape Liquor Board commissioned shows that people
reported that the main reason for consuming alcohol was boredom. This clearly suggests that many
people, especially young people, indulge in alcohol due to limited socio-economic activities in their
communities. This has necessitated interventions that would ensure that young people are provided
with something to do in their communities, especially the coordination of sporting programmes. In
order to alleviate boredom and provide alternative to young people, Social Accountability facilitated
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·

·

the following social responsibility programmes to benefit communities, especially the vulnerable
groups.
Social responsibility programmes were conducted through social activities such as sport, music,
support to cooperatives and provision of food parcels and these programmes were conducted in
Sarah Baartman District, Buffalo City Metro, Amatole District Municipality, Alfred Nzo District
Municipality and OR Tambo District Municipality.
In collaboration with Aware.org, Social Accountability facilitated four sport tournaments against
alcohol abuse in King Williams Town, Mbizana, Lusikisiki, Mount Ayliff and Willowvale. These sport
tournaments brought together young people over a couple of days and kept them away from the
abuse of alcohol.

Young people participating in sport

·

·

·

·

Furthermore, in partnership with Heineken, two sport tournaments were also facilitated in Jansenville
and Joubertina. These programmes were conducted with a view to encourage young people to refrain
from abusing alcohol.
As part of the Mandela Day, Social Accountability supported a Sivenathi Care Centre – a Centre for
the people living with disability in Fort Beaufort (Amatole District Municipality). The Centre was
supplied with clothes for young people living with disabilities, seeds for the vegetable garden in order
to provide food security for the Centre. ECLB also handed over cleaning material to the Centre as part
of its Christmas celebration in December.
In partnership with Heineken ECLB celebrated an early Christmas in Stutterheim by handing over food
parcels to the 15 families that live under extreme poverty and were identified with the assistance of
the Department of Social Development.
In partnership with South African Breweries, Social Accountability supported a Cooperative for People
Living with Disabilities in Enyandeni. A permanent structure was built for the Cooperative to assist
them in breeding chicken and a total a 500 chickens were provided to kick-start the Centre so that
they can sell to the community and support their families. As a result the Cooperative employs has
employed young people from their community, and this initiative will potentially reduce the abuse of
alcohol among young people in particular and further alleviates poverty in many families in the area.

4.3.2.3

Number of people reached

About 68 893 people were reached with the anti-alcohol abuse education and awareness programmes.
This number exceeds the annual target of 56 000 for the year under review due to more partnerships that
the entity has established with various stakeholders who have similar programmes.

4.3.2.3.1 Media mobilisation
In order to reach a large proportion of community members from diverse backgrounds, Social
Accountability used various media platforms to intensify its messages that sought to mitigate the harmful
effects of excessive consumption of alcohol in the Eastern Cape. The Eastern Cape Liquor Board received
extensive media coverage of 32 slots from various media houses showcasing its programmes that sought
to educate and raise awareness on the dangers of alcohol abuse. Positive media coverage was received
from both print and electronic media, and epitomised improved relations between media and ECLB.
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Prior to the implementation of various Social Accountability interventions, media releases/alerts were
issued out to various media houses and subsequently coverage was received as follows:

Fort Hare FM, Unitra Community Radio, Kumkani Community Radio, Vukani

Electronic media

Radio, Tru Fm, Algoa FM, Alfred Nzo, Nkqubela FM, Nkonjani Radio, Umhlobo
Wenene, SABC TV

Rep Newspaper, Sara Baartman News Edition, Go Express, Herald Newspaper,

Print media

Daily Dispatch, Isolezwe LwesiXhosa, Isolomzi Express, East London Rising Sun
Mthatha Express

4.3.2.3.2 Stakeholder engagement
In the period under review, Social Accountability intensified its efforts to mobilise stakeholder partnerships
in order to enhance its capacity in reducing the scourge of alcohol abuse. The table below is an illustration
of the key stakeholder that have collaborated with Social Accountability in various initiatives during this
financial year.
STAKEHOLDER
Provincial sector
departments (Departments
of Health, Education, Social
Development, Safety &
Liaison, Transport, Gambling
Board, Municipalities)
SANCA, NICRO, FAMSA,
Masimanyane and Provincial
AIDS Council
Shoprite Checkers

AREA OF COLLABORATION
Fight against the abuse of
alcohol, establishment of antialcohol and substance abuse
forums and research

ENGAGEMENT STATUS
Collaborated on all anti-alcohol abuse programmes, especially
at the district level where majority of sector departments are
represented. Social Accountability received support from
majority of stakeholders that are particularly based in the
districts.

Fight against the abuse of
alcohol with special focus on
FAS and HIV/AIDS-alcohol
related challenges
Underage drinking

Collaborated on programmes that sought to fight the abuse of
alcohol, especially among women and young people who are
prone to the scourge of alcohol abuse.

SAB

Responsible liquor
consumption & Research

Heineken

FAS, underage drinking and
responsible trading

Distell

Responsible alcohol
consumption education, and
FAS

Institutions of Higher
Learning (more institutions
such as WSU & Fort Hare to
be engaged in the new
financial year)

Research

Shoprite Checkers has continued to support ECLB’s schoolbased activities, focusing more on school-based activities
such as debate, drama and sport in schools. Shoprite
provided prizes during school-based activities as incentives
to motivate learners to actively participate in the campaign
and embrace messages as conveyed. Their contribution
included catering and prizes for the winning schools that
comprised sporting equipment to promote sport in schools.
ECLB and SAB collaborated on various community-based
programmes, particularly cooperatives that seek to
economically empower communities. For example, SAB
funded a Cooperative for the People Living with Disabilities in
Libode to the value of R100 000.
Heineken has signed MoU with the ECLB. In the period under
review ECLB collaborated with Heineken and rolled out FAS
and responsible alcohol consumption campaigns in Sara
Baartman District Municipality. An amount of more than R600
000 was sponsored towards the implementation of these
initiatives.
Collaborated with ECLB on research and FAS education
campaigns. Distell has funded research project to the tune or
R2 million on the prevalence of alcohol consumption among
women during pregnancy in the Buffalo City, an amount of
R680 000 towards the liquor traders’ empowerment
programme.
MoU signed with both NMU and Rhodes Universities. Rhodes
University initiated research on prevalence of alcohol
consumption among pregnant women in the Buffalo City.
Nelson Mandela University has submitted a proposal on a
potential research project within the Eastern Cape. However,
ECLB is still consulting with other stakeholders for the
funding of the research project. ECLB has also initiated
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STAKEHOLDER

Aware.org

AREA OF COLLABORATION

Underage drinking, liquor
traders’ development and
responsible consumption of
alcohol

Eastern Cape Liquor Traders’ Reducing alcohol harm and
Associations
promoting responsible
consumption and trading
Traditional authorities
Responsible alcohol
consumption, underage
drinking, compliance with
trading conditions
Council of Churches
Responsible alcohol
consumption, compliance and
enforcement

4.3.3

ENGAGEMENT STATUS
discussions with Fort Hare and WSU for possible
collaborations.
MoU singed with Aware.org and sponsored the
implementation of the Liquor Traders’ Facilitation
Programme. Aware.org has also supported the facilitation of
the sporting programmes targeting predominately young
people in the Eastern Cape.
Various liquor traders’ associations have collaborated with
Social Accountability alcohol harm reduction initiatives
Social Accountability has collaborated with various traditional
authorities and they have increasingly supported harm
reduction initiatives in their respective areas.
Various churches have collaborated with Social
Accountability in fighting the scourge of alcohol abuse.

Research initiatives

In the period under review two data sources have been secured, and they include the following:
·
Research on the Alcohol use during pregnancy in the Eastern Cape within the Buffalo City Municipality
was completed, and subsequently the report issued. The study has revealed interesting trends. For
example, it shows that while two-thirds of the women sampled reported not drinking, of those who
did report drinking, many drank at harmful or hazardous levels. The end-term study revealed an
increase in reported drinking in the intervention sites. Three explanations were provided: an increased
willingness to disclose drinking; the normalisation of drinking during pregnancy in the sites; the
collection of data by a new health service provider. Furthermore, the narrative project, in which women
who drank during pregnancy, and the partners/family members of such women, were asked to narrate
the journey of the pregnancy, revealed the difficult personal and social circumstances through which
these women must navigate. Drinking was justified through reference to a lack of partner support,
stress, trauma, and a drinking culture. However, one of the recommendations of the study is that
further research would be needed to ascertain which of these explanations holds.
·
The data was also sourced from Nielsen on the economics of liquor industry nationally and in the
Eastern Cape. This data essentially shows that in the period reviewed Eastern Cape spend on alcohol
has increased by approximately R937 million. The data are significant as they give an idea of the
extent the general public’s expenditure on alcohol.
·
There is however a need for more research on the social impact and dynamism of the liquor industry
in the Eastern Cape in order to meaningfully inform various Entity’s intervention initiatives and
programmes in general.

4.3.4

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There were no areas of underperformance on the performance indicators that were planned during the
financial year of reporting.

4.3.5

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.

4.3.6

Linking performance with budget
Programme

Social Accountability
Total

Budget
R’000
4 629
4 629

Actual Expenditure
R’000
4 353
4 353
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(Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
276
276

4.4 BUSINESS SUPPORT PROGRAMME
4.4.1

Purpose of the programme

The purpose of this programme is to provide administrative and management support services to the
organisation including the Board of Directors, to ensure that entity’s mandate is executed, achieved and
reported accordingly.
Business support programme is constituted by the following sub programmes - Finance, Corporate
Services, ICT and the Office of the CEO.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: The following strategic objective guides the performance of the above
mentioned sub programme to achieve the desired outcomes:
a) Good corporate governance (short description)
§ To enable adherence to good corporate governance practices through the provision of systems.

4.4.2

FINANCE

4.4.2.1

Purpose of the programme

To ensure an effective, efficient and transparent system of financial management as well as establish,
maintain and enhance appropriate organisational systems to fulfill the Board’s procurement, asset
management reporting and accountability responsibilities.
KEY PERFORMANCE MMEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
Actual
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
Achievetarget to
Comment
Target
Performance Achievement Achievement Achievement
ment
Actual
on
No
Indicator
2016/
2017/
2018/
2019/
2019/
Achievement deviations
2017
2018
2019
2020
2020
for
2019/2020
1.
Audit
Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified
outcome
audit opinion audit opinion audit opinion audit
audit
with findings opinion
opinion

4.4.2.2
·
·
·

Programme performance

Financial oversight reports were submitted to Management.
In-Year – Monitoring (IYM) report due was submitted to Treasury and DEDEAT.
The payment to DEDEAT is reconciled monthly and paid on time.

4.4.2.3

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There were no areas of underperformance on the performance indicators that were planned during the
financial year of reporting.

4.4.2.4

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.
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4.4.2.5

Linking performance with budget
Programme

Finance
Capital expenditure
Total

Budget
R’000
10 234
1 287
11 521

Actual Expenditure
R’000
10 226
1 287
11 13

(Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
8
8

4.4.3 CORPORATE SERVICES
4.4.3.1

Purpose of the programme

The Corporate Services Programme provides operational support to the entity. The core functions of this
programme include the following: - Human Resources, Corporate Administration and Supply Chain
Management.
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
No Performance
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation Comment on
Indicator
Achievement Achievement Achievement Target Achievement from planned deviation
2016/
2017/
2018/
2019/
2019/
target to
2017
2018
2019
2020
Actual
2020
Achievement
for
2019/2020
1. Percentage
2
2
100%
100%
100%
of employees
contracted
and reviewed
performance
2. Skills
4
5
8
2
2
development
plan
successfully
implemented
3. Percentage
4
4
100%
100%
100%
achievement
of targets in
the employee
wellness plan
4. Compliance
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
with supply
chain
management
processes
5. Percentage
53,5%
40%
47%
7%
More
spent on
procurement
Eastern Cape
done with EC
SMME’s
SMME’s

NB. The targets for some indicators were changed from numbers to percentage to ensure that they are
SMART.

4.4.3.2

Programme performance

The Corporate services programme achieved all the planned targets for the year. The following activities
were undertaken:
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4.4.3.2.1 Performance Management.
·
·
·

All employees contracted and also submitted the financial disclosures for 2019/20 financial year
Half-year performance reviews conducted and all the employees were assessed
Performance agreements and the financial disclosures for all the employees submitted for
2020/21.

4.4.3.2.2 Skills Development
·
·
Skill development plan for 2019/20 approved.
·
Personal Assistant to the CEO attended the Document Management System Course.
·
2019/20 Policy Workshop for all the ECLB employees including District Offices was conducted in
·
·
·

May 2019.
Workshop was conducted on all the Corporate Services policies including the reviewed ones.
Training on Theory of Change facilitated by Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation and
National School of Governance for 3 days in December 2019.
Middle Management and Senior Management attended the Theory of Change training.

4.4.3.2.3 Employee Health Wellness
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Wellness Programme for 2019/20 approved.
Facilitated one session in collaboration with CANSA, Nicro and NOSA.
Focus was on both Men’s and Women’s health and Drug Abuse.
Hosted Women’s Day Celebration for all the ECLB employees including those in the Districts in
August 2019.
Collaborated with Masimanyane Women’s Support, FAMSA, Angel Outreach Charity, Organization,
Liquor Traders Association and SANCA.
Facilitated wellness sessions for all the district office. Collaborated with SANCA, FAMSA, Eastern
Cape Department of Health and Virgin Active.
Commemoration of World Aids Day collaborated with Department of Health, Masimanyane and
other partners in December 2019.
Session for employees’ financial wellness held in March 2020.
Specialist Doctor conducted an educational awareness workshop on Corona Virus pandemic in
March 2020.

4.4.3.2.4 Supply Chain Management
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

No irregular procurement transactions had been identified in 2019/20 financial year.
Deviation register has been updated for period of reporting.
All procurement processes had been followed for the transactions of the reporting period.
The contracts register has been updated for the period of reporting.
Checklist is used for all the procurement done in 2019/20 financial year.
Budget report has been attached to all the transactions for 2019/20 financial year.
All the suppliers have completed the SBD 4 forms.
Procurement done through service providers registered in the Central Supplier Database
Quotation register is updated for the period of reporting.
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4.4.3.2.5 Bid procurement
·
·

Specifications for Office Accommodation for Port Elizabeth, Queenstown and Cradock, Printing
Machines and Cellphone and other devices approved by the Board.
The Board approved the following procurements.
Cellular phones and other network devices.
Office Accommodation for Port Elizabeth, Cradock and Queenstown.

4.4.3.3

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There were no areas of underperformance on the performance indicators that were planned during the
financial year of reporting.

4.4.3.4

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.

4.4.3.5

Linking performance with budget
Programme

Corporate Services
Total

Budget
R’000
7 486
7 486

Actual Expenditure
R’000
7 390
7 390

4.4.4

INFORMATION COMMUNICATION AND TECHNOLOGY

4.4.4.1

Purpose of the programme

(Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
96
96

Information Communication and Technology Division provide IT support to the head office and district
offices.
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Comment
Performance Achievement Achievement Achievement Target Achievement
Actual
on
No
Indicator
2016/
2017/
2018/
2019/
2019/
Achievement deviations
2017
2018
2019
2020
2020
for 2019/
2020
1. Uptime and
97.5%
98%
98%
97.5%
98%
availability of
ICT
infrastructure
and services
2. ICT
Maturity level Maturity level Maturity Maturity level
3
3
3
Governance
level 3
Framework
implemented

4.4.4.2

Programme performance

Outlined below is the progress that has been made in the period under review in respect of the performance
indicators of this programme.
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4.4.4.2.1 ICT Infrastructure Support
·
·

Maintenance and Administration of ICT Infrastructure ( Network, desktop, severs)
Modernisation of ICT infrastructure to support business process.

4.4.2.2
·

·
·
·
·

ICT Governance and Strategy

Compliance with Control Objectives for Information and Related Technology (COBIT) requirements,
namely:o Implementation of ICT Governance (Formulation of ICT Steering Committee, Appointment of ICT
Governance Champion)
o Development of ICT strategy
o Implementation of ICT Strategy ( Implementation Roadmap, Policy reviews, controls and
procedures)
Research and development (New technology and Solutions)
Cloud Hosting Services Research in progress.
Implementation of initiatives in progress (Network upgraded. Routers upgraded. DNS configured.
Telephone solution installed.)
Procurement of MPLS/VoIP Services complement. MPLS/VoIP Services. Implementation in
progress.

4.4.4.3

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There were no areas of underperformance on the performance indicators that were planned during the
financial year of reporting.

4.4.4.4

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.

4.4.4.5

Linking performance with budget
Programme

Information Communication and Technology
Total

Budget
R’000
2 927
2 927
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Actual Expenditure (Over)/Under Expenditure
R’000
R’000
2 908
19
2 908
19

4.4.5

OFFICE OF THE CEO

4.4.5.1

Purpose of the programme

The Office of the CEO provides strategic leadership to the entity and handles all the matter of the Board
and its Committees.
KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES, TARGETS AND ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
Deviation
from planned
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Planned
target to
Comment
Performance Achievement Achievement Achievement Target Achievement
Actual
on
No
Indicator
2016/
2017/
2018/
2019/
2019/
Achievement deviation
2017
2018
2019
2020
2020
for
2019/2020
1. Organisational
90%
91%
95%
80%
90%
-10%
Most of the
performance
targets
index
were
achieved
than
anticipated

4.4.5.2
·
·
·
·
·

Programme performance

The entity has achieved 90% of its planned targets for the year.
Performance was monitored and evaluated on a quarterly basis.
All quarterly reports were audited by the Internal Audit.
The Strategic Plan 2020 - 24 and Annual Performance Plan 2020 was prepared and submitted
timeously.
All the policies were reviewed and workshops for employees conducted.

4.4.5.3

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

There were no areas of underperformance on the performance indicators that were planned during the
financial year of reporting.

4.4.5.4

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to the performance indicators and targets during the financial year of
reporting.

4.4.5.5

Linking performance with budget
Programme

Office of the CEO
Total

Budget
R’000

Actual Expenditure
R’000

6 671
6 671

6 608
6 608
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(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000
63
63

5. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
5.1 REVENUE COLLECTION
Revenue reflected below represents licence fees due and paid in the process of issuing licences from 01 April
2019 to 31 March 2020. No change in the fee structure was effected in the 2019/20 financial year. All revenue
generated in the process of issuing licences is paid to the Provincial Revenue Fund through DEDEAT.
#
1
2
3
5
6
7
9
10
11

ACCOUNT
REVENUE CATEGORY
RATE
Q1
Q2
APP – COPY OF REGISTRATION
250
500
1 000
1006
APP - REGISTRATION
2 500 52 500 417 500
1002
APP - TRANSFER
750
39 750
1004
APP - REMOVAL
750
3 000
1005
LODGEMENT OF APPEAL
750
750
1007
NEW REGISTRATION Sec 20(a)
5 000 88 000
90 000
1101
NEW REGISTRATION Sec 20(b) 8 000 98 500 171 000
1104
NEW REGISTRATION Sec 20(c)
2 000 129 850 128 000
1107
NEW REGISTRATION Sec 20(d) 1 000
7 000
17 000
1110

13 1102
14 1105
15 1108
16 1103
18 1106
19 1109

TRANSFER/REMOVAL Sec
20(a)
TRANSFER/REMOVAL Sec
20(b)
TRANSFER/REMOVAL Sec
20(c)
ANNUAL FEE Sec20(a)
ANNUAL FEE Sec20(b)
ANNUAL FEE Sec20(c)

Q3

Q4

TOTAL

SUM

1 250
532 500
28 500
2 250
750
80 000
80 000
174 000
39 000

1 000
685 000
27 750
3 000
0
102 000
82 500
132 150
27 000

3 750
1 687 500
96 000
8 250
1 500
360 000
432 000
564 000
90 000

15
675
128
11
2
72
54
282
90

1 250

11 250

8 750

17 500

16 250

53 750
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1 000

4 000

4 000

6 000

15 000

29 000

29

1 000

13 000

7 000

8 000

21 000

49 000
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- 2 245 000 597 000
- 3 303 000 841 500
- 6 727 500 5 144 500
404 600 887 750 13 245 250 7 695 650

2 842 000
4 144 500
11 872 000
33 250

1 137
1 382
4 749
8717

2 500
3 000
2 500

TOTAL REVENUE RECEIVED

5.2 OVERALL EXPENDITURE
The entity spent R63 031 000 in the achievement of its mandate for the 2019/20 financial year. The entity is
within its budget allocation for the year as it has implemented cost containment measures per Treasury
instructions.

i.

Expenditure by economic classification

EXPENDITURE BY ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES
GOODS AND SERVICES
PAYMENTS CURRENT
CAPITAL EXPENSES
TOTAL PAYMENTS
TRANSFERS RECEIVED FROM DEDEAT

ii.

ACTUAL EXPENDITURE
42 949
18 318
61 267
1 287
62 554
62 483

R'000
BUDGET
42 955
18 789
61 744
1 287
63 031
62 483

ACTUAL %
100.0%
97.5%
99.2%
100.0%
99.2%
100.0%

Expenditure by programme
PROGRAMME NAME

Licencing
Compliance and Enforcement
Social Accountability
Finance
Corporate Services
ICT
Office of the CEO
Capital expenses
TOTAL

R'000
BUDGET
ACTUAL EXPENDITURE
6 696
6 693
23 027
23 017
4 629
4 353
10 308
10 298
7 486
7 390
2 927
2 908
6 671
6 608
1 287
1 287
63 031
62 554
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UNDER EXPENDITURE
3
10
276
10
96
19
63
477

1. INTRODUCTION
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled
and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation,
and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entity’s is applied through the precepts
of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained in the
King’s Report on Corporate Governance.
Parliament, the Executive, and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate
governance.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
The Portfolio Committee on Economic Development, Environmental Affairs and Tourism exercises
oversight over the service delivery performance of the ECLB and , as such, reviews the non-financial
information contained in the Annual Reports of the ECLB and is concerned with service delivery and
enhancing economic growth. The following reports have been submitted and presented to the Portfolio
Committee: ·
Presentation of the 2019/20 - 2021/22 Annual Performance Plan and Budget of the ECLB
·
Consideration of the 2018/19 Annual Report and 2019/20 Six months Oversight Report

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The Executive Authority performs its oversight on the ECLB as prescribed by the PFMA. As stipulated in
the ECLA the Executive Authority has the power to appoint and dismiss the Members of the Board. The
ECLB reports to the Executive Authority as required by the PFMA on a quarterly basis through submission
of various oversight reports as indicated below.
NO
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

DATE
20 July 2019
31 August 2019
15 October 2020
20 October 2019
25 October 2019
20 January 2020
20 April 2020

REPORTS SUBMITTED TO THE EEXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
2019/20 First Quarter Financial and Performance Report
2018/19 Annual Report, including Annual Financial Statements
2020 - 2024 Strategic Plan and 2020 -22 Annual Performance Plan
2019/20 Second Quarter Financial and Performance Report
2019/20 Six months Oversight Report and Performance Information Report
2019/20 Third Quarter Financial and Performance Report
Fourth Quarter Financial and Performance Information Report

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD
The members and the Board and its committees jointly and severally derive their fiduciary responsibilities
from the provisions of the EC Liquor Act and the PFMA , the Board Charter and the Terms of Reference of
the various committees of the Board.
These fiduciary responsibilities involve the following responsibilities:
·
The duty to exercise the utmost care to ensure reasonable protection of the assets and records of
the ECLB;
·
The duty to act with fidelity, honesty, integrity and in the best interests of the ECLB entity in
managing the financial affairs of the ECLB;
·
The duty to disclose on request, to the Executive Authority responsible for the public entity or the
legislature to which the public entity is accountable, all material facts, including those reasonably
discoverable, which in any way may influence the decisions or actions of the executive authority or
that legislature; and
·
The duty to seek, within the sphere of influence of the accounting authority, to prevent any prejudice
to the financial interests of the state.
The Board and its committees shall also have those responsibilities as set out in the PFMA and the EC
Liquor Act.
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4.1

The role of the Board is as follows:

The Board is mandated to regulate the liquor establishments within the Eastern Cape, by complying with
the Eastern Cape Liquor Act, Act 10 of 2003. The board is ultimately accountable and responsible to the
MEC, for DEDEAT for the Performance and affairs of the ECLB in terms of the Eastern Cape Liquor Act and
the PFMA. The Board must therefore retain full and effective control over the ECLB and must give strategic
direction to the ECLB's Executive Management. The board is also responsible for ensuring that the ECLB
complies with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of business practice.

4.2

Composition of the Board

The Board consists of four (4) non-executive members and one (1) executive member in an ex-officio
capacity, and the Chief Executive Officer. Meetings attended by the Board Members include meetings with
the Portfolio Committee and the Shareholder.
NAME
Ms N.B.
MoleshePakade

DATE
APPOINTED

QUALIFICATIONS

DESIGNATION

26 February 2020 Board
Chairperson

·
·
·
·

·
·
·
·
Prof. L.Y.
MajovaSongca

Adv. Z.
Mapoma

02 December
2013 – (term
ended
31/08/2019)

Board
Chairperson

·
·
·

·
·
·
02 December
Board Member ·
2013 – (resigned
·
2019)
·
·
·

·

Mr. Z. Hewu

·
26 January 2016 Board & Audit ·
Committee
Member
·
·
·

Mr. M.J.

15 February 2018 Board Member ·

LLB
B Juris
Certificate in Legal
Practice
Admitted Attorney of the
High Court of South
Africa
Post Graduate Diploma
in Labour Law
Diploma in Project
Management
Diploma in Management
Studies
Diploma in Management
Studies
MBA
Honours B. Compt
Certificate in Theory of
Accountancy
Teachers Diploma
APT
CA (SA)
MBA, LLM, LLB, B Proc
Management
Advancement
Programme
Advanced Diploma in
Labour Law
Diploma in Company
Direction
Admission as an
Attorney and
Conveyancer
Certificate in Alternative
Dispute Resolution
Advocate
National Diploma in
Government Accounting
Certificate in Political
Leadership
Certificate in Meeting
Procedures
Certificate in Training for
Town Renewal
Certificate in Education
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AREA OF
EXPERTISE

NO OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Legal

3

Finance /
Management

2

Legal

10

Local
economic
development,
Strategic
Management

11

Leadership

13

DATE
APPOINTED

NAME
Batembu

Certificate in Computer
Training
Certificate in Office
Management
Certification Welding
Artisan
Chartered Accountant
SA
SAICA Member
Honours BCom
Accounting
BCom Accounting
Diploma in Marketing
Higher Diploma in
Education
Bachelor of Arts
MBA
Certificate in Strategy
Risk and Audit
Compliance Certificate
Project Management
Certificate

·
·
·

Ms B. Jojo

March 2020

Board Member ·
·
·

Ms C. Tys

·
Board Member ·
·

March 2020

·
·
·
·
·

4.3

NO OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED

AREA OF
EXPERTISE

QUALIFICATIONS

DESIGNATION

Finance

3

Leadership/
Management

3

Remuneration of board members
Name

Cell phone
allowance

Remuneration

Ms N.B. Moleshe- Pakade (Chairperson: appointed –
26/02/2020)
Prof. Lindelwa Majova-Songca (Chairperson: term ended 31/08/2019)
Adv. Zuko Mapoma (term ended - //2019)
Mr. M.J. Batembu
Ms B. Jojo (appointed – 26/02/2020)
Ms N. Tys (appointed – 26/02/2020)
TOTAL

Total

R36 000

R3 000

R39 000

R24 000

R3 000

R27 000

R114 500
R119 000
R25 500
R25 500
R344 500

R6 000

R114 500
R119 000
R25 500
R25 500
R350 500

Mr Z Hewu represents the shareholder DEDEAT and was therefore reimbursed travelling expenses
amounting to R7 411.
Name
Prof Majova
Adv Mapoma
Mr Hewu
Mr Batembu
Ms MoleshePakade
Ms Jojo
Ms Tys

30/04 28/05 29/05 19/06 24/07 30/07 3/10 04/10 21/10 22/10 17/03 18/03 26/03
✓
✓
✓
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

✓
✓
✓
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

✓
✓
-

✓
✓
-

✓
-

-

-

-

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓

✓
✓

✓
✓

Total
attended
2/13
10/13
11/13
13/13

3/13
3/13
3/13

5. RISK MANAGEMENT
The entity has a fully functional Audit and Risk Committees. Risk assessment meetings for 2019/20 were
held with staff, management as well as the Board. A complete risk assessment of the organisation has
been performed. Inputs from Directors, Management and staff were collated and the risk profile was
created. This was then submitted to the Risk and Audit Committees before final approval by the Board.
The identified risks are monitored and discussed in the risk management meetings. The risks identified
for the year were categorized in order of priority. All the divisions on which the priority risks reside have
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submitted evidence of their mitigating actions in respect of the priority risks. Constant monitoring of risk
on a monthly and quarterly basis.

6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
The Internal Audit Function was outsourced for the year under review to Lunika Incorporated.
The tabled below discloses relevant information on the Audit Committee members
Name
Wayne Manthe

Position in the
audit committee

Qualifications
·
·
·

·
Adv. Simthandile ·
Gugwini-Peter
·
·
·

Velile Pangwa

·
·
·

Zola Hewu

·

Phambili Jizana

·
·
·
·
·
·
·

CA (SA)
Postgraduate Diploma in Accounting
Certificate in Theory and Practice of
Auditing
Bachelor of Commerce (majors in
Accounting and Commercial Law)
LLB
Compliance Management Programme
Practical Legal Training
Certificate in/for: o Ethics Officer
o Enterprise-wide Risk Management
Course and Companies Secretaries
o Policy Development
o Business focused Project
Management
CA (SA)
B Comm (Hons)
Post graduate diploma in Financial
Accounting
National Diploma in Government
Accounting
Certificate in Political Leadership
Certificate in Meeting Procedures
Certificate in Training for Town Renewal
ND Electronics Engineering
Diploma: Project Management
Post Grad in E-Commerce
M Phil IT Governance (Currently
studying)

Chairperson

Date appointed
01/10/2016

No. of
Meetings
attended
5

Deputy Chairperson 01/10/2016

5

Member

01/04/2015

4

Member

07/03/2016

4

Member

01/04/2018

3

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding financial matters, financial
management and other relevant matters.

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The public entity has a fully functional fraud prevention plan and has a fraud email account and telephone
number for the public to report any fraudulent activities.

9. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
On an annual basis, all staff members, Board members and Audit Committee members are required to
complete declaration of interest forms. Thus far for the 2019/20 financial year, no conflict of interest was
identified.
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10.CODE OF CONDUCT
The ECLB has a fully functional and implemented Code of Conduct Policy. For the 2019/20 financial year,
no recorded cases of breach in the policy were recorded.

11.HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
Monthly inspections by Health and Safety representatives were conducted and any challenges addressed
on an ongoing basis. Health and Safety Committee Meetings are held to monitor progress on reported
challenges.

12.SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Embeded within the entity’s responsibilities and mandate is ensuring that the entity embarks on social
responsibility as well as education and awareness campaign. Detailed report on responsible drinking and
trading programmes, alcohol harm reduction initiatives, poverty alleviation projects and related are
reported under 4.3.

13.B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE requirements of
the BBBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade and Industry.
Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate Levels 1 – 8) with
regards to the following:
Response
Criteria
Discussion
Yes / No
Determining qualification criteria for the
No
The entity has submitted a request to the Shareholder for
issuing of licences, concessions or other
amendment of regulations in order to give effect to the
authorisations in respect of economic
BBBEE compliance accreditation as a requirement for
lodging a liquor licence application
activity in terms of any law?
Developing and implementing a preferential
Yes
Within ECLB Supply Chain Policy, the provisions of the
procurement policy?
PPPFA Regulations 2017 to promote the local industrial
development, socio-economic development and
empowerment of small business enterprises,
cooperatives and rural and township enterprises has
been catered for. The changes in preference points
weighting is also effected in the policy.
Determining qualification criteria for the sale
N/A
of state-owned enterprises?
Developing criteria for entering into
Yes
Details of engagements with the private sector have been
partnerships with the private sector?
detailed under Part B of this report.
Determining criteria for the awarding of
N/A
incentives, grants and investment schemes
in support of Broad Based Black Economic
Empowerment?
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1. INTRODUCTION
Human Resources Management is the unit within Corporate Services Division. Human Resources
Management plays a vital role within the organization by ensuring that the organizational goals are
achieved through Human Resources planning and management of performance.
It is also the responsibility of Human Resources Management to ensure that the organization employs the
best employees by applying the Recruitment and selection policy appropriately. Recruitment for 2019/20
was made in line with the approved recruitment and selection policy. This policy also encourages the
recruitment and appointment of females and people with disabilities at all levels.
Proper implementation of performance management system also ensures that the best is achieved from
the employees. In 2019/20 financial year all the employees entered into performance contracts with the
organization by signing the performance agreements at the beginning of the financial year.
As the employer, ECLB has a responsibility to ensure that all the employees are equipped with knowledge,
practical skills, mentoring and motivation to carry-out the work-related tasks allocated to them. Through
the implementation of the approved skills and development programme, trainings and workshops were
conducted in this period under review.
One of the responsibilities of the organization as the employer is to ensure the health, safety and wellness
of the employees. It is on these basis that the Employee Health, Safety and Wellness programme was
developed and fully implemented in 2019/20 financial year.
Amongst the support provided by Human Resources Management is the provision of advice in all labour
related matters. ECLB has an approved policies that guides the implementation of all labour related
matters. All the ECLB labour related matters are applied in conjunction with the provisions of the Labour
Relations Act and other related legislations.

2. HR PRIORITIES FOR 2019/20
·
·
·
·
·

Compliance and implementation of approved HR policies
Performance Management system
Skills Development programme
Employee Health, Safety and Wellness programme
Proper management of Labour Related matters.

Implementation of the set HR priorities had assisted ECLB in improving the performance and increased
the employees’ productivity. This has assisted the organization in achieved almost all its set performance
targets for 2019/20 financial year.
Implementation of the Internship programme has also assisted ECLB in improving in its performance. This
has also assisted the interns to gain the workplace experience, develop and improved their work
experience.

3. WORKFORCE PLANNING FRAMEWORK AND KEY STRATEGIES TO ATTRACT
AND RECRUIT SKILLED AND CAPABLE WORKFORCE
ECLB has an approved Employment Equity Plan and Recruitment and Selection policy. The proper
implementation of these two has assisted the organization in ensuring that it attracted and recruited the
skilled and the capable workforce. ECLB has also ensured and encouraged the upward mobility and
development of its employees by first advertising all its vacant positions internally to ensure that the
internal staff gets the first opportunity in applying for such positions. This has seen many employees
moving to upper levels and positions in the organization

4. EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
ECLB has an approved Performance Management and Development policy whose purpose is to improve
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organizational performance through the effective management of resources and the relationships
between the individual employees and the organization. It is an approach designed to achieve the strategic
objectives of the organization. This system applied to all jobs. Each employee signed a performance
agreement in line with the APP and the Operational Plan. The performance cycle ran from 01 April to
31March of the financial year. Biannually the supervisor reviewed the performance of every employee
against agreed objectives both in the areas of individual performance and/ or overall contribution to the
performance of the division. Two sessions of performance assessment were conducted in 2019/20
financial year.

5. EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAMMES
Four wellness sessions were planned and implemented for the 2019/20 financial year. These programmes
were implemented in collaboration with different stakeholders like EC Department of Health, Masimanyane
Womens Support Centre, Cancer Association of South Africa (CANSA), Family South Africa (FAMSA) etc.
These sessions helped in addressing the health dimension of Spiritual, emotional, social as well as
intellectual wellness of the employees. It is also in this period under review that the awareness workshop
on COVID-19 was conducted by the Epidemiologist.

6. POLICY DEVELOPMENT
Human Resources policy development process of ECLB in 2019/20 financial year has included amongst
others the consultation of the employees. The employees were given the opportunity to discuss the
potential implications of the policy and were also provided chance to give their inputs. All the Human
Resources policies were developed and some reviewed in line with the prescribed legislations.
For all the approved and reviewed HR policies, training to support the implementation among staff was
conducted in 2019/20 financial year. All the HR policies are accessible to the employees.

7. HIGHLIGHT ACHIEVEMENTS
Successful implementation of the approved Human Resources policies. Implementation of performance
management system has improved the performance of the organization and also assisted in achieving the
individual as well as the organizational targets for 2019/20 financial year. Proper implementation of the
labour related policies has seen ECLB attending and addressing all the labour related matters successfully
in 2019/20 financial year.
Successful implementation of internship programme has assisted the 10 interns to gain the workplace
experience and making them ready for the workplace market. Implementation of the internal recruitment
has seen many employees moving up their career ladder in the organization.

8. CHALLENGES FACED BY THE PUBLIC ENTITY
·
·
·
·

Budget constraints for skills development
Capacity and shortage of staff in core business divisions
Budget constraints for recruitment
Vacant unfunded positions in the approved organogram

9. FUTURE HR PLANS /GOALS
ECLB HR plans for the future is to ensure that there is a proper skills development plan in place to develop
the employees’ knowledge, skills and abilities to deliver their tasks.
It is also in the HR plans of ECLB to ensure that the approved succession plan is in place and is
implemented. Human Resources management will also ensures the continuous implementation of
performance management system to improve the individual as well as the organizational performance.
Review of the feedback tools will be done to improve the engagement between the employees and the
organization
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10.HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
10.1

PERSONNEL COST BY PROGRAMME

Programme
Licencing
Finance
Corporate Service
Compliance and
Enforcement
Social Accountability
ICT
Office of the CEO
Interns
Total

Total
Expenditure for
the entity
(R’000)
6 320 000
10 607 000
7 451 000

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel exp.
as a % of total
exp. (R’000)

No. of
employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

5 594 142
3 770 702
4 852 811

13.1
8.9
11.4

11
5
8

508 558
754 140
606 601

24 766 000

18 686 898

43.9

38

491 760

2 885 000
4 146 000
6 896 000
63 071 000

2 570 207
1 350 548
5 117 815
583 500
42 481 622

6.1
3.2
12.1
0.015
100

4
2
5
10
83

642 551
675 274
1 023 563
58 350
511 826

The employee numbers include 10 interns – (Corp Services 3; Finance 2; IT 1; MCO 3; CED 1). (NB: The
expenditure of the Interns, R583 500 is included in total expenditure of each division)

10.2

PERSONNEL COST BY SALARY BAND

Level
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
Contract workers (Interns)
Total

10.3

% of
% of
personnel
personnel
exp.
exp.
Personnel
to to
total
total
personnel
personnel
Expenditure (R’000)
cost
(R’000)
cost
(R’000)
2 281 403
6 461 803
11 680 386
8 953 586
11 591 492
855 741
583 500
42 481 622

No. of employees
No. of employees

5.3
15.2
27.5
21.0
27.4
2.0
0.015
100

1
4
13
17
34
4
10
83

AZIVEKI 4IVWSRRIP
GSWXTIVIQTPS]II
(R’000)
(R’000)
2 281 403
1 615 450
898 491
526 681
340 926
213 935
58 350
511 826

PERFORMANCE REWARDS
Level

Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Performance rewards

Personnel Expenditure
(R’000)

312 488
870 968
1 328 287
912 990
1 353 025
99 744
4 877 502

2 281 403
6 461 803
11 680 386
8 953 586
11 591 492
855 741
41 898 122

(NB. 41 898 122 excludes the Interns)
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% of Performance rewards
to total personnel cost
(R’000)
13.7
13.5
11.4
10.2
11.7
11.7
11.6

10.4

TRAINING COSTS

Programme
Licensing
CED
Social
Accountability
Corporate
Services
Finance
ICT
OCEO
TOTAL

10.5

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

5 594 142
18 686 898
2 570 207

8 108
105 404
4 054

Training
Expenditure as a
% of Personnel
Cost
0.0002
0.0025
0.0001

4 852 811

16 216

3 770 702
1 350 548
5 117 815
583 500

16 216
4 054
8 108
162 160

No of employees Average training
trained
cost per employee
2
26
1

4 054
4 054
4 054

0.0003

4

4 054

0.0003
0.0001
0.0002
-

4
1
2
40

4 054
4 054
4 054

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES
Programme

Licensing
Finance
Corporate
Compliance and
Enforcement
Social Accountability
Information and
Communication
Technology
Office of the CEO
Total
Interns
Total including Interns

Level
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
Contract workers (interns)
Total

2019/2020
No of employees
11
5
8

2019/2020
Approved Posts
11
5
9

2019/2020
Vacancies
1

38

39

1

5.1

4

5

1

0

2

2

-

0

5
73
10
83

5
76
-

3
-

20.0
3.9
-

2019/2020
No of employees
1
4
13
17
34
4
10
83

2019/2020
Approved Posts
1
4
13
17
34
4
10
83

2019/2020
Vacancies
0
0
0
0
3
0
0
3

% of vacancies
0
0
11.1

% of vacancies
0
0
0
0
3.9
0
0
3.9

N.B: All the vacant positions are at semi-skilled level and these are the approved posts in the organogram
but are not funded. Vacancies are for Senior inspector, Personnel Practitioner, Admin Officer.
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10.6

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

In the year 2019/20 financial year, an appointment of the Senior Inspector for Alfred Nzo District was made
to replace deceased employee. The filling of the Inspector position for PE was made to replace inspector
who had vacated this position to assume the Senior Inspector positions.
Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
Interns
TOTAL

10.6.1

Employment at
beginning of period
1
4
13
17
34
4
10
83

Appointments

Terminations

1
1

1
1
2

Reasons for staff leaving
Reason

Number
1
1
0
0
0
1
0
3

Death
Resignation
Dismissal
Retirement
Ill health
Expiry of contract
Other
TOTAL

% of total no. of staff leaving
0.014
0.014
0
0
0
1
0
0.041

NB. Death of Senior Inspector; Resignation of Legal Officer; Expiry of CEO’s contract

10.7

Employment at end
of period
1
4
13
17
34
4
10
83

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final written warning
Dismissal
TOTAL

Number
0
0
1
0
1

NB. Final written warning for an Inspector.
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10.8

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS
Levels

AFRICAN
Current
Target

Top
Management
Senior
Management
Professional
Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Levels

WHITE
Current
Target

1

1

0

-

0

-

0

-

2

2

0

-

0

-

0

-

8

4

0

2

0

2

0

0

6
3
1
21

2
1
1
11

0
0
0
0

2
1
0
5

0
0
0
0

2
1
0
5

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

AFRICAN
Current
Target

Top
Management
Senior
Management
Professional
Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL
Staff with
disability
TOTAL

MALE
COLOURED
INDIAN
Current
Target
Current
Target

FEMALE
COLOURED
INDIAN
Current
Target
Current
Target

0

1

0

-

0

2

1

0

1

0

4

2

1

1

9
28
3
46

4
22
3

1
1
0
3

1

2

47

35

WHITE
Current
Target

0

-

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

2
5
0
-

0
0
0
0

2
3
0
-

1
1
0
2

1
1
0
-

0

1

0

1

0

1

3

10

0

7

2

3

Staff with disability

Levels
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

MALE
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

FEMALE
Target
1
2
2
3
3
2
13

Current
0
0
0
0
1
0
1

Target
1
2
2
4
16
2
27

N.B: Despite numerous efforts exerted in our recruitment adverts to attract and encourage people with
disabilities to apply, none of this category applies. ECLB will continue to encourage this group of people to
apply for all the positions advertised for levels.
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1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
The Board Members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate
accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and
related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Board Members to ensure that
the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Eastern Cape Liquor Board as at the end
of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and was given
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting
Standards Board.
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The Board Members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the Eastern Cape Liquor Board and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment. To enable the Board Members to meet these responsibilities, the accounting authority sets
standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost-effective manner. The
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the Eastern Cape Liquor Board and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the Eastern Cape Liquor Board’s business is conducted in a manner that in all
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Eastern Cape Liquor Board
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Eastern Cape Liquor
Board. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Eastern Cape Liquor Board endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The Board Members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that
the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement/s.
The Board Members have reviewed the Eastern Cape Liquor Board’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March
2021 determined through the DEDEAT MTEF budget allocation, and, in the light of this review and the current
financial position, they are satisfied that the Eastern Cape Liquor Board has or has access to adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board is wholly dependent on the Department of Economic Development,
Environmental Affairs and Tourism for continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements are
prepared on the basis that the Eastern Cape Liquor Board is a going concern and that the Department of
Economic Development, Environmental Affairs and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate
or curtail materially the scale of the Eastern Cape Liquor Board.
Although the accounting authority are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the Eastern Cape Liquor
Board, they are supported by the Eastern Cape Liquor Board's external auditors.
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Eastern Cape Liquor
Board's annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the Eastern Cape
Liquor Board's external auditors and their report is presented on page 79. The annual financial statements set
out on page 84, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the accounting authority
on 30 July 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

_______________________________________
Ms N. Moleshe – Pakade
Board Chairperson
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2. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.
Audit committee members and attendance
The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder. In terms of
section 77 of the PFMA, the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a
year. During the current year 5 meetings were held.

Name of member
Wayne Manthe
(Chairperson)
Simthandile Gugwini-Peter
(Deputy Chairperson)
Velile Pangwa
Zola Hewu
Phambili Jizana

Mr W Manthe
Audit Committee
Chairperson

2019/04/25

2019/05/27

2019/07/22

2019/10/03

2020\03\04

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
No
Yes

No
Yes
No

Yes
Yes
No

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Audit committee responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 55(1)(a) of
the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.
The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit
committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.
The effectiveness of internal control
The system of internal controls applied by the Eastern Cape Liquor Board over financial and risk
management is effective, efficient and transparent. In line with the PFMA and the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the audit committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk
management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to
the controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the
annual financial statements, and the management report of the Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted
that no matters were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the system of internal control or
any deviations therefrom. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control over financial
reporting for the period under review was efficient and effective.
The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the
Division of Revenue Act.
The audit committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared
and issued by the Board and Management of the Eastern Cape Liquor Board during the year under review.
Evaluation of annual financial statements and annual performance information report
The audit committee has:
·
reviewed changes to accounting policies and practices,
·
reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions,
·
reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority the audited annual
financial statements for inclusion in the annual report,
·
reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's management report and management’s response
thereto
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The Audit Committee accepts the annual financial statements and performance information report and
are of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements and annual performance information report
should be accepted and read together with the report of the Office of the Auditor-General of South Africa
for auditing.
Internal audit
The Internal Audit Function was outsourced for the year under review to Lunika Incorporated.
The Audit Committee has approved the Internal Audit plan and the Internal Audit has executed the plan
accordingly. The Audit Committee has received reports from the Internal Auditors, considered the content
of the reports and is satisfied with the content and quality of reports received on the audits carried out for
the year under review.
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has
addressed the risks pertinent to the Eastern Cape Liquor Board and its audits.
#
1

2
3
4
5
6

INTERNAL AUDIT PROJECT

TIMING OF PROJECT
Q1: April 2019
Q2: July 2019
Risk Management
Q3: January 2020
Q1: April 2019
Planning ,Project Administration Q2: July 2019
Q3:October 2019
and Reporting
Q4: January 2020
Information Technology
Q2: September 2019
Governance Compliance &
Q2: July 2019
Regulatory Reviews
Supply Chain Management
Q4:February 2020
Q4: March 2020
Human Resources
Q1:April 2019

7 Asset Management

8 Quarterly Performance Reviews
9 Annual Financial Statements
10 Revenue and Licensing

STATUS

Completed

Completed
Completed

Completed
Completed

Completed
Moved to a later date
due to the pandemic

Q4:May2020
Q1: July 2019
Q2:October 2019
Q3:January 2020
Q4: April 2020
Q4: July 2020
Q1:July 2019
Q2:October 2019
Q3:January 2020
Q4:May 2020
Q4: April 2019

11 Follow Up (internal & external)
Ad-Hoc: Agreed upon proceduers
12 on invoices charged by third
Q2: September 2019
party to ECLB

Completed
Completed

Completed
Completed

Completed

Auditor General of South Africa
The Audit Committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to discuss the audit strategy. The AuditorGeneral has also presented the draft audit report to the Audit Committee as represented by the Audit Committee
Chairperson.

_________________________________
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 2020/07/28
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4. ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY'S REPORT
The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

1.

Subsequent events

The Board Members are not aware of any other significant matters or circumstances arising since the end
of the financial year except those reported under note 26

2.

Accounting policies

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the
prescribed framework by National Treasury.

3.

Accounting Authority

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Ms. N Moleshe-Pakade
(Chairperson appointed 26/02/2020)
Prof. LY Majova-Songca
(Chairperson term ended 31/08/2019)
Adv. ZL Mapoma
(term ended 01/12/2019)
Mr. Z Hewu
Mr. MJ Batembu
Ms. B. Jojo
(Appointed 26/02/2020)
Ms. N. Tys
(Appointed 26/02/2020)

4.

South African

Independent Member

South African

Independent Member

South African

Independent Member

South African
South African
South African

DEDEAT ex-officio
Independent Member
Independent Member

South African

Independent
Member

Compliance with applicable legislation

The ECLB has complied with material prescripts of all laws and regulations applicable to it. The primary
legislation applicable to the entity include the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108
of 1996); Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999); Treasury
Regulations, 2001; Eastern Cape Liquor Act (Act 10 of 2003), amongst other applicable acts and
regulations.

___________________________________________
Ms. N Moleshe-Pakade
Chairperson
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
Figures in Rand

Note

2020

2019

Assets
Current Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions

5

844 100

3 179 433

Cash and cash equivalents

6

17 358 981

12 201 293

18 203 081

15 380 726

5 923 041

7 130 586

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

Intangible assets

4

Total Assets

4 416 259

4 232 392

10 339 300

11 362 978

28 542 381

26 743 704

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation

7

1 116 679

1 118 791

Payables from exchange transactions

8

17 510 171

14 908 166

Payables from non-exchange transactions

9

1 963 171

865 000

20 590 021

16 891 957

1 081 966

2 148 738

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation

7

Total Liabilities

21 671 987

19 040 695

Net Assets

6 870 394

7 703 009

Accumulated surplus

6 870 394

7 703 009
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6. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Figures in Rand

Note

2020

2019

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

12

61 521 392

64 435 528

Revenue from exchange transactions
Commissions received
Other income
Interest received

10
11

1 411
266 990
1 243 137
1 511 538

779
50 622
893 843
945 244

(10 280 559)
(1 741 745)
(2 317 075)
(43 315 340)
(5 577 795)
(522 075)
-

(10 014 395)
(1 931 262)
(1 564 905)
(40 714 270)
(7 073 835)
(440 769)
(1 256 000)

(63 754 908)

(62 995 436)

(721 978)
(275 954)
165 319

2 385 032
(184 265)
51 692

(110 635)

(132 573)

(832 613)

2 252 763

Expenditure
Administration and management fees
Auditors remuneration
Depreciation and amortisation
Personnel
Operating expenses
Marketing
Research costs

14
18
15
13
17

Operating surplus
Finance costs
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

16

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
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7. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Accumulated Total net assets
surplus

Figures in Rand

Balance at 01 April 2018

5 450 246

5 450 246

Surplus for the year

2 252 763

2 252 763

Balance at 01 April 2019

7 703 009

7 703 009

Deficit for the year

(832 613)

(832 613)

Balance at 31 March 2020

6 870 394

6 870 394
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8. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

Note

2020

2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Cash receipts from services
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Interest received

106 551
65 813 592
1 243 137
67 163 280

51 401
59 462 308
893 843
60 407 552

(42 514 796)
(17 017 560)
(275 954)
(59 820 108)
7 354 970

(39 579 534)
(21 981 173)
(184 265)
(61 744 972)
(1 337 420)

(893 158)
165 319
(400 558)
(1 128 397)

(2 281 484)
22 245
(170 260)
(2 429 499)

Finance lease payments

(1 068 886)

(101 652)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

5 157 688
12 201 293
17 358 981

(3 868 571)
16 069 864
12 201 293

Payments
Personnel
Suppliers
Finance costs
20

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

3
3
4

Cash flows from financing activities

6
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9. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis
Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget

Actual
Difference
amounts on between final
budget
comparable
basis
and actual

Reference

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE INCLUDING CAPEX
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Commissions received
Other income
Interest received
Total revenue from exchange
transactions

500 000
500 000

266 990
743 137
1 010 127

-

1 411
266 990
1 243 137
1 511 538

1 411
1 411

266 990
1 243 137
1 510 127

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants
Donations and sponsorships
Total revenue from
non-exchange transactions
Total revenue

62 483 000
-

(1 098 171)
136 563

61 384 829
136 563

61 384 829
136 563

-

62 483 000

(961 608)

61 521 392

61 521 392

-

62 983 000

48 519

63 031 519

63 032 930

1 411

(42 753 000)
(9 654 941)
(1 962 000)
(650 000)
(280 000)
(6 940 059)
(743 000)
(62 983 000)

(202 377)
(626 633)
220 000
1 104 153
(543 662)
27 328
-

(42 955 377) (42 949 412)
(10 281 574) (10 274 125)
(1 742 000) (1 741 745)
(650 000)
(522 075)
(280 000)
(275 954)
(5 835 906) (5 504 183)
(1 286 662) (1 286 662)
(63 031 519) (62 482 142)
478 774
165 319

5 965
7 449
255
127 925
4 046
331 723
477 363
478 774
165 319

12
12

Expenditure
Personnel
Administration
Auditors remuneration
Marketing costs
Finance costs
Operating Expenses
Capital Expenditure
Total expenditure

Gain on disposal of assets
and liabilities
Surplus for the year including
644 093
644 093
capital expenditure
Actual surplus on
644 093
644 093
Comparable Basis as
Presented in the Budget and
Actual Comparative
Statement
Refer to note 27 for the reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance. Material variances
are also explained on the same note.
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10.ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with
Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in
accordance with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They
are presented in South African Rand and rounded off to the nearest rand.
The nature of ECLB activities do not allow for meaningful reporting of segments as envisaged in GRAP 18
relating to segment reporting as such it is impractical for the entity to report in terms of this standard.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation
of these annual financial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the prior year annual
financial statements, unless specified otherwise.
1.1 Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency
of the Eastern Cape Liquor Board.
1.2 Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Eastern Cape
Liquor Board will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The use of judgment, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing annual financial
statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the annual
financial statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future periods.
Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial
statements.
Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements
that may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management,
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These
estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed
in the period of the review and applied prospectively.
Designation of property plant and equipment and intangible assets as non-cash generating assets
All items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are designated as non-cash generating
assets as they are held to for service delivery purposes and are not expected to generate commercial
returns.
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Other significant judgements, sources of estimation uncertainty and/or relating information, have been
disclosed in the relevant notes.
Provisions
Provisions are measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the
obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future
to settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes
of the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different potential outcomes are
for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then
assigns a weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that the outcome will
materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored
outcomes are then added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions.
Impairment for credit losses
The measurement of receivables is derived after consideration of the allowance for doubtful debts.
Management makes certain assumptions regarding the categorisation of debtors into groups with similar
risk profiles so that the effect of any impairment on a group of receivables would not differ materially from
the impairment that would have been determined had each debtor been assessed for impairment on an
individual basis. The determination of this allowance is predisposed to the utilisation of estimates,
assumptions and management judgements. In determining this allowance, the estimates are made about
the probability of recovery of the receivables from exchange transactions based on their past payment
history and risk profile.
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives
and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected
condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations
about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the how the
condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value management considers the impact
of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.
1.4 Property, plant and equipment
Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the supply of services
or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period.
Items of property, plant and equipment are recognised as assets when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value can
be measured reliably.
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and are initially
recorded at cost when acquired through exchange transactions. However, when items of property, plant
and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactions, those items are initially measured at their
fair values as at the date of acquisition.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to
bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the entity. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost at which the asset
is recognised.
The cost also includes the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site
on which it is operated.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. These major
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives.
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Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it is deemed cost
is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the entity
expects to use them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing
equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that
have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The depreciable amount is determined after taking
into account an assets' residual value, where applicable.
The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives and the useful lives
of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Finance lease equipment

Depreciation method
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line

Average useful life
8 to 15 years
5 years
4 to 10 years
1 to 10 years
1 to 5 years
2 to 5 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service
potential are expected to be consumed by the Eastern Cape Liquor Board.
The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if there has
been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a
change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the
Eastern Cape Liquor Board expectations about the residual value and the useful life of an asset have
changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the Eastern Cape Liquor Board
revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are
no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
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The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item.
Assets which the Eastern Cape Liquor Board holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as
part of the ordinary course of activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets
are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on
these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement.
The entity separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the
notes to the financial statements (see note 3).
The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An assessment
of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable
service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the
impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the
period the impairment is identified.
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the assets' carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.5 Intangible assets
Initial recognition and measurement
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The entity
recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position when:
·
is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred,
licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable
assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
·
arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those
rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties
to it as if it were in the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
·
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity; and
·
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of
economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange
transaction), its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at or is deemed to be equal to its fair
value as at that date.
Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense
when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised when:
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·
·
·
·
·
·

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a nonmonetary asset or monetary assets or a
combination of monetary and nonmonetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value
(the cost). If the acquired item's fair value is not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of
the asset(s) given up.
Subsequent measurement
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use.
It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in Statement of
Financial Performance in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. During
the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service
potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the
remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance
are not recognised as intangible assets.
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Amortisation
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, over its useful lives
to their residual values as follows:
The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives:
Item
Computer software, internally generated
Computer software, other

Depreciation method
Straight-line

Average useful life
indefinite
1 to 6 years

The Eastern Cape Liquor Board discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or
development, in the notes to the financial statements (see note 4).
Impairments
The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is
performed at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is greater
than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the
Statement of Financial Performance.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairments at the end of each reporting
period.
Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:
·
on disposal; or
·
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when
the asset is derecognised and is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value and is recognised into the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.6

Financial instruments

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when,
and only when, the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Upon initial recognition the entity classifies financial instruments or their component parts as a financial
liability, financial assets or residual interests in conformity with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and to the extent that the instrument satisfies the definitions of a financial liability, a financial
asset or a residual interest.
Financial instruments are evaluated, based on their terms, to determine if those instruments contain both
liability and residual interest components (i.e. to assess if the instruments are compound financial
instruments). To the extent that an instrument is in fact a compound instrument, the components are
classified separately as financial liabilities and residual interests as the case may be.
Initial Measurement
When a financial instrument is recognised, the entity measures it initially at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value,
amortised cost or cost. All financial assets and financial liabilities are measured after initial recognition
using the following categories:
a) Financial instruments at fair value.
b) Financial instruments at amortised cost.
c) Financial instruments at cost.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised at trade date, when:
·
The cash flows from the asset expire, are settled or waived.
·
Significant risks and rewards are transferred to another party; or
·
Despite having retained significant risks and rewards, the entity has transferred control of the asset
to another entity.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation is extinguished. Exchanges of debt instruments
between a borrower and a lender are treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Where the terms of an existing financial liability are modified, it is
also treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of a new liability.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at
fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired or through
the amortisation process.
Offsetting
The entity does not offset financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position
unless a legal right of set-off exists and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.
Impairments
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. The entity
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
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For financial assets held at amortised cost:
The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset‘s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset‘s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor‘s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets held at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual
interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
1.7

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. Assets subject to finance leases are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the
inception of the lease, as is the corresponding finance lease liability.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership. Assets subject to operating leases are not recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position. The operating lease expense is recognised over the course of the lease arrangement.
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date; namely whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Measurement
Assets subject to a finance lease, as recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, are measured (at
initial recognition) at the lower of the fair value of the assets and the present value of the future minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition these capitalised assets are depreciated over the
contract term.
The finance lease liability recognised at initial recognition is measured at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition this liability is carried at amortised cost, with
the lease payments being set off against the capital and accrued interest. The allocation of the lease
payments between the capital and interest portion of the liability is effected through the application of the
effective interest method.
The finance charges resulting from the finance lease are expensed, through the Statement of Financial
Performance, as they accrue. The finance cost accrual is determined using the effective interest method.
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The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. To the extent that the straight-lined lease
payments differ from the actual lease payments the difference is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position as either lease payments in advance (operating lease asset) or lease payments payable (operating
lease liability) as the case may be. This resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the undiscounted
difference between the straight-line lease payments and the contractual lease payments.
Derecognition
The finance lease liabilities are de-recognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability is
extinguished. The assets capitalised under the finance lease are derecognised when the entity no longer
expects any economic benefits or service potential to flow from the asset.
The operating lease liability is derecognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability is
extinguished. The operating lease asset is derecognised when the entity no longer anticipates economic
benefits to flow from the asset.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate
implicit in the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
1.8

Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial
return means that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after
deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance
costs and income tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.
Useful life is either:
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·
·
1.9

the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. Cash includes cash on hand and cash with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and
deposits held on call with bank.
1.10

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable in the short term, i.e.
within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee benefits
include remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence
occurs.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as services are
rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when the specific event occurs.
These short-term employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the period the employee
renders the related service the specific event occurs. They are recognised as an expense when there is a
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
Defined contribution plans
Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period that such contributions become payable/fall due. This contribution expense is
measured at the undiscounted amount of the contribution paid or payable to the fund. A liability is
recognised to the extent that any of the contributions have not yet been paid. Conversely an asset is
recognised to the extent that any contributions have been paid in advance.
1.11

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
·
the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event.
·
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; and
·
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.
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Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus or deficit.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 22.
1.12

Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in
the statement of financial performance but are included in the notes to the annual financial statements.
Commitments represent goods/services that have been ordered, but no delivery has taken place at the
reporting date. Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future
transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a
note to the financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
·
Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost; and
·
Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity.
Approved and Contracted Commitments: Where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has
been awarded at the reporting date.
Approved but not yet contracted commitments: Where the expenditure has been approved and the
contract is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.
Material contracts entered into after the reporting date but prior to the approval of the financial statements
are disclosed under subsequent events.
1.13

Revenue

Measurement
Government grants
Government grants are recognised as revenue when:
·
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will
flow to the Eastern Cape Liquor Board,
·
the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and
·
to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic
benefits or service potential on the basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of
government to another are subject to the availability of funds. Revenue from these grants is only
recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may
be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence
of the probability of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow
becomes available.
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Restrictions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis.
Where there is no restriction on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes
effective, which-ever is earlier.
When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying
expense has been incurred and to the extent that any other restrictions have been complied with.
Donations and sponsorships
Other donations and sponsorships are recognised as revenue when:
·
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will
flow to the Eastern Cape Liquor Board.
·
the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and
·
to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the donation
and/or sponsorship.
If donations and sponsorships are received without conditions attached, revenue is recognised
immediately. If conditions are attached, a liability is recognised, which is reduced, and revenue recognised
as the conditions are satisfied.
1.14

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an
entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from
owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its
objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services,
or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.
Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of
whether or not they pay taxes.
Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court
or other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange
transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal
value in exchange or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in
exchange.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred
asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be
returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon
the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.
Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions
that are not available to others.
The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be
subject to taxation.
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Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance
with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or
other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions,
other than taxes.

1.15

Interest received

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis which takes into account the effective yield
on the asset over the period it is expected to be held.
1.16

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
Qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use of sale.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.17

Comparative figures

Current year comparatives (Budget)
Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24, has been provided in the Statement of Comparison
of Budget and Actual amounts.
The financial statements and budget are not presented on the same basis, as the financial statements are
prepared on the accrual basis and the budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting. A reconciliation
between the surplus/(deficit) for the period as per the Statement of Financial Performance and budgeted
surplus/(deficit) is included as a note to the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.
Prior year comparatives
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period
comparative amounts are also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification and /
or restatement is not required by a Standard of GRAP. The nature and reason for such reclassifications
and restatements are also disclosed.
Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year, the
correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated
accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
The presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with prior periods.
1.18

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered in subsequent financial years, it is subsequently accounted
for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable in the
year the expenditure is incurred is transferred to the statement of financial position as a receivable.
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1.19

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), an
overspending of the entity's budget or is in contravention of the entity’s supply chain management policies.
Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted
for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.20

Recovery of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

The recovery of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, and is
recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible officials is probable. The recovery of irregular,
fruitless and wasteful expenditure is treated as other income.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which
condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No
further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the
following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated
with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular
expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account
must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the
amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting
authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must
remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial
statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register
1.21

Transfer of government grants

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction, e.g. grant, other than services in-kind, that meets the
definition of an asset when and only when:
a) it is probable that in the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to
the ECLB; and
b) the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Grants received without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board recognises assets that arise from non-exchange transactions when it gains
control and are disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position and corresponding revenue in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

1.22

Budget information

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to
performance outcome objectives by division, such details are provided on the annual performance plan
and actual performance reported included in the annual report.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020.
The annual financial statements and the relevant budget figures are both presented by economic
classification a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the
Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.
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1.23

Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or
joint control.
The entity has processes and controls in place to aid in the identification of related parties. A related party
is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.
Related party relationships where control exists are disclosed regardless of whether any transactions took
place between the parties during the reporting period.
Where transactions occurred between the entity any one or more related parties, and those transactions
were not within: normal supplier and/or licensee/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more
or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with
that individual entity or person in the same circumstances; and terms and conditions within the normal
operating parameters established by the reporting entity’s legal mandate;
Further details about those transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Information
about such transactions is disclosed in the financial statements.
1.24

Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting
date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
·
those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date); and
·
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).
The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the
reporting date once the event occurred.
The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such
estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.25

Deferred income from non-exchange transactions

Deferred income shall be recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the ECLB
recognises as expenditure the related costs for which the income was intended to compensate.
1.26

Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Eastern Cape Liquor Board is exempted in terms of Section
10 (1)(cA)(1) of the Income Tax Act (Act No: 58 of 1962).
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1.27

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is:
·
a possible obligation, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the entity; or
·
a present obligation that is not recognised because, the outflow of economic benefits or service
potential is not probable; or
·
a real obligation, that may not be recognised, either because the timing or measurement is not
known.
·
Contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 27.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
entity.
Contingent assets are not recognised.
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11.NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.

New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
GRAP 1
GRAP 2
GRAP 3
GRAP 4
GRAP 5
GRAP 6
GRAP 7
GRAP 8
GRAP 9
GRAP 10
GRAP 11
GRAP 12
GRAP 13
GRAP 14
GRAP 16
GRAP 17
GRAP 18
GRAP 19
GRAP 20
GRAP 21
GRAP 23
GRAP 24
GRAP 25
GRAP 26
GRAP 27
GRAP 31
GRAP 32
GRAP 100
GRAP 103
GRAP 104
GRAP 105
GRAP 106
GRAP 107
GRAP 108
GRAP 109

Presentation of Financial Statements
Cash Flow Statement
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investment in Associate
Interests in Joint Ventures
Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Construction Contracts
Inventories
Leases
Events After the Reporting Date
Investment Property
Property, Plant and Equipment
Segment reporting
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Related Parties
Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)
Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
Employee Benefits
Impairment of Cash-generating Assets
Agriculture
Intangible Assets
Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Heritage Assets
Financial Instruments
Transfers of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control
Transfers of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control
Mergers
Statutory Receivables
Accounting by Principals and Agents

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2020 or later periods. The entity
cannot at this stage reasonably estimate the nature and impact these standards will on the entity's financial
statements. As a result, no adjustments have been made relating to these standards in the current and prior
periods presented.
GRAP 34 Separate Financial Statements
GRAP 35 Consolidated Financial Statements
GRAP 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
GRAP 37 Joint Arrangements
GRAP 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
GRAP 110 (as amended 2016) Living and Non-living Resources
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3.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost /
Valuation

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Finance Lease Vehicles
Total

3 519 191
1 285 697
3 605 037
950 555
3 369 181
12 729 661

2020
Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
(1 438 001)
(827 340)
(2 493 354)
(685 794)
(1 362 131)
(6 806 620)

Carrying
value

2 081 190
458 357
1 111 683
264 761
2 007 050
5 923 041

Cost /
Valuation

3 179 942
416 536
1 132 611
3 278 334
929 112
3 369 181
12 305 716

2019
Accumulated Carrying
depreciation value
and
accumulated
impairment
(1 225 666)
(416 536) (550 448)
(2 231 142)
(512 268)
(239 070)
(5 175 130)

1 954 276
582 163
1 047 192
416 844
3 130 111
7 130 586

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Finance Lease Vehicles

Opening
balance
1 954 276
582 163
1 047 192
416 844
3 130 111
7 130 586

Additions

Opening
balance
322 123
69 426
79 536
1 384 328
262 816
2 118 229

Additions

366 206
167 703
337 806
21 443
893 158

Depreciation
(239 292)
(291 509)
(273 315)
(173 526)
(1 123 061)
(2 100 384)

Total
2 081 190
458 357
1 111 683
264 761
2 007 050
5 923 041

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Finance Lease Vehicles

1 856 321
636 733
52 057
307 448
3 369 181
6 221 740

Depreciation
(224 168)
(69 426)
(134 106)
(389 193)
(153 420)
(239 070)
(1 209 383)

Total
1 954 276
582 163
1 047 192
416 844
3 130 111
7 130 586

The ECLB has assets that are fully depreciated, however these assets are still in use. The review of these
asset's residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods at year end did not warrant an adjustment
to be made.
The ECLB has spent R110 (2019: R2 033) repairing and maintaining its property, plant and equipment.
R1 300 (2019: R 19 216) was spent by the ECLB repairing and maintaining leased premises.
The entity disposed redundant and unusable assets including motor vehicle, furniture and office equipment
with nil book values. Proceeds on disposal of these assets amounted to R165 319 (2019: 51 692).
Security
Assets held under finance lease have a carrying value amounting to R2 007 050 (2019: R 3 130 111) at
year end and are used as security for the obligation as disclosed in note 7.
Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)
Finance Lease Vehicles

2 007 050

107

3 130 111

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand
4.
Intangible assets

2020

2019

2020
Cost /
Valuation
Computer software, internally
generated

Accumulated
amortisation

3 992 775

-

Computer software, other

2 419 035

(1 995 551)

Total

6 411 810

(1 995 551)

2019
Carrying
value

Cost /
Valuation

3 992 775

3 992 775

423 484

2 042 315

4 416 259 6 035 090

Accumulated
amortisation
-

Carrying
value
3 992 775

(1 802 698)

239 617

(1 802 698) 4 232 392

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020
Opening
balance
Computer software, internally generated
Computer software, other

Additions

3 992 775

-

239 617

400 558

4 232 392

Amortisation
-

3 992 77

(216 691)

400 558

Total

423 484

(216 691) 4 416 25

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019
Opening
balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

Computer software, internally generated

3 992 77

-

-

Computer software, other

424 879

170 260

(355 522

3 992 77
239 617

4 417 654

170 260

(355 522)

4 232 39

The ECLB has spent R282 150 (2019: R51 300) maintaining its intangible assets. The maintenance and support contract
was entered into towards the end of the 2018/19 financial year.
The entity's internally generated software is assessed as having an indefinite useful life. The entity tests these assets
for impairment annually as well as its useful life. Events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for these assets. There are no changes in technology that have a negative impact in the entity's
intangible assets. These intangible assets continue to provide for minimum service requirements of the entity and
furthermore support future ICT developments within the entity.
5.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Receivables - Due
Receivables - Past due
Less: Impairment for credit losses

Impairment for credit losses
Opening balance
Additional provisions made
Reduction in impairment

839 544
38 120
(33 564)
844 100

3 172 77
33 786
(27 129)
3 179 433

(27 129)
(7 110)
675
(33 564)

(23 149)
(3 980)
(27 129)

Receivables include rental deposits, hall hire deposits, staff recoverable expenditure relating to cell phone usage, study
loans and sundry debt. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. Sundry
receivables are impaired when recovery is highly unlikely. Included in the prior year balance were unallocated fees paid
to DEDEAT.

6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with First National Bank. Cash at bank earn
interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Cash on hand
Bank balances

21 523
17 337 458
17 358 981
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7.

2020

2019

Finance lease obligation

The ECLB entered into finance lease arrangements with Wesbank in respect of motor vehicles. The period
of the lease agreement is for a 36-month period with the liability repayable in monthly instalments which
are reviewed annually. The liabilities are repayable in monthly instalments on the last day of the month at
prime interest rates respectively. This debt is secured by the finance lease assets as per note 3.
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

1 281 131
1 158 691
2 439 822
(241 177)
2 198 645
1 081 966
1 116 679
2 198 645

less: future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

1 360 765
2 431 858
3 792 623
(525 094)
3 267 529
2 148 738
1 118 791
3 267 529

It is the entity’s policy to lease motor vehicles and equipment under finance leases.
The lease term is 36 months and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2019: 10%).

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments reviewable annually, and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent in respect of the contract overall. The entity's
obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.
8.

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables
Salary related
Revenue payable to DEDEAT
Accrued leave pay
Accrued bonus
Accruals
Sundry payables
Operating lease payables

375 989
666 584
696 846
1 547 161
4 877 502
878 144
7 873 371
594 574
17 510 171

843 224
14 196
1 191 403
4 432 716
1 030 027
6 728 413
668 187
14 908 166

Revenue payable to DEDEAT is in respect of fees collected on their behalf. Sundry payables include unallocated
funds due to over/ under payments as well as incorrect or insufficient information provided by license holders
and applicants.

9.

Payables from non-exchange transactions

Funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund

1 963 171

865 000

Funds to be surrendered relates to the possible repayment of funds to the Provincial Revenue Fund. In Funds to
be surrendered relates to the possible repayment of funds to the Provincial Revenue Fund. In term of section 53
of the PFMA, as a Public Entity, ECLB may not accumulate surpluses without obtaining prior written approval of
the Provincial Treasury. Funds disclosed above as funds to be surrendered includes amounts owing to third
parties and are committed. A request for the rollover of surplus funds has been submitted to the Provincial
Treasury
10.

Other income

Insurance claim
Tender document fees
Refunds and sundry deposits

62 637
3 500
200 853
266 990

46 222
4 400
50 622

Refunds and other sundry deposits relate mainly to funds received from Momentum reimbursing the entity for a
medically boarded employee.
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11. Interest received
Interest revenue
Bank
12.

2020

2019

1 243 137

893 843

62 483 000
865 000
(1 963 171)
61 384 829

59 541 000
3 686 848
(865 000)
62 362 848

136 563
61 521 392

2 072 681
64 435 529

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Operating grants
DEDEAT Transfer
Rollover funds approved and available
Funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund
Other grants and subsidies
Donations and sponsorships

DEDEAT transfer amounting to R62 483 000 (2019: R59 541 000) is reflected above after deducting funds to be
surrendered as disclosed in note 9 for which a rollover application has been made.
Donations and sponsorships include amounts received from Distell and South African Breweries for harm
reduction initiatives, licensing as well as compliance enforcement programmes. Donations received in kind
from various stakeholders are disclosed under various divisions in the performance information report.
13. Personnel
Basic salaries
Bonus
Medical aid contributions
UIF
Workmen's compensation
Pension fund contributions
Net movement in leave accruals
Temporary staff

14.

608 230
240 830
344 500
232 267
55 627
2 094 759
10 602
4 094 731
688 885
1 910 128
10 280 559

600 068
275 557
364 250
211 003
46 108
1 838 168
23 619
3 990 187
586 253
2 075 202
10 010 415

273 265
239 292
291 509
173 526
1 123 061
216 691
2 317 394

69 426
389 193
224 168
134 106
153 420
239 070
355 522
1 564 905

275 954

184 265

Depreciation and amortisation

Motor vehicles
Computer Equipment
Office Furniture and Fittings
Office Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Finance lease - Vehicles
Amortisation - computer software

16.

31 432 902
4 432 716
236 723
271 125
82 639
3 851 787
307 366
99 012
40 714 270

Administration and management fees

General and administrative expenses
Board administrative expenses
Board members honorarium
Audit Committee expenses
Storage cost
Travel and subsistence
Entertainment
Rentals in respect of operating leases
Insurance
Communication costs

15.

33 395 468
4 877 502
295 767
272 141
68 794
4 033 265
365 928
6 475
43 315 340

Finance costs

Finance leases
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17.

2020

2019

Operating expenses

Cleaning expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Consumables and tools
Equipment rental
Fuel and oil
Legal costs
Maintenance, repairs and running costs
Staff recruitment
Printing and stationery
Social responsibility outreach programme
Staff training and development
Utilities
Vehicle rental
Other

350 935
17 834
15 082
605 536
713 830
633 029
376 590
26 952
191 447
1 284 952
240 538
458 005
667 810
5 582 540

332 176
25 760
10 451
341 364
591 629
221 164
189 244
76 785
227 173
2 697 441
230 569
494 959
1 158 476
480 624
7 077 815

Included in social responsibility expenditure in 2018/19 is R1 618 600 relating to a payment made to a
service provider for the Anti-Alcohol Abuse Programme focusing on institutions of higher learning. The
entity is in a process of changing the implementation model of the program.
The ECLB entered into a finance lease contract with Wesbank and all expenses relating to the contract
are capitalised under note 7.
18.

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit - Auditor General
Internal Audit

1 478 041
263 704
1 741 745

1 634 231
297 031
1 931 262

19. Operating lease
The Eastern Cape Liquor Board entered into the following operational lease agreements: ·
Rental of properties in East London, Port Elizabeth, Cradock, Queenstown and Mthatha,
·
Rental of a network printers; and
·
Rental of computer equipment.
At statement of financial position date, the Board had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due. All entity operating lease contracts are for 36 to 60 months, as one
contract ends a new one is entered into to ensure continued service delivery. Both network and computer
equipment contracts have been entered into in the current financial year. New rental of properties
contracts entered into in the current financial year relate to Port Elizabeth, Cradock and Queenstown. The
East London operating lease contract is nearing its end, with 14 months remaining to the end of the
contract; whilst the Mthatha office has 24 months remaining in the contract.
Up to 1 year
2 to 5 years
Total operating lease commitments

5 039 918
5 836 208
10 876 126
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20.

2020

Cash generated from operations

(Deficit) surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
PPE adjustment
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non-exchange transactions

21.

2019

(844 092)

2 252 763

2 317 075
(165 319)
-

1 564 905
(22 245)
(571 077)

2 340 078
2 526 157
1 174 018
7 347 917

(2 710 261)
970 343
(2 821 848)
(1 337 420)

3 438 552

8 437 620

2 235 612
1 202 940
3 438 552

8 437 620
8 437 620

3 438 552

8 437 620

Commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for
·
Other financial liabilities
Total commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for
Not yet contracted for and authorised by members
Total commitments
Authorised operational expenditure

Commitments above relate to future expenditure.
22. Contingent liabilities
There were three legal matters that were not concluded by 31 March 2020. These matters include two civil
claims and one labour related matter. At this stage it is not possible to estimate Eastern Cape Liquor
Board’s maximum exposure for any of these matters. The nature of these legal matters are detailed below.
Civil matters
1. The ECLB is cited as a second respondent in a matter relating to the interpretation of the Eastern Cape
Liquor Act, 2003 (Act no. 10 of 2003) and the applicant is claiming R200 000 in damages.
2. The entity received summons from the Plaintiff claiming loss of income amounting to R 180 000. The
Plaintiff is alleging that the ECLB wrongfully cancelled his liquor licence.
Labour matters
The CCMA ruled in favour of an employee. The ECLB took the decision on review to the labour court. Upon
verbal advice, it was noted that due to lack of recordings etc. the matter must start de nova. The ECLB has
received a notice from the CCMA indicating an arbitration date of the 6th of December 2019. At arbitration
which was held on the 6th of December 2019 it was agreed to proceed at Labour Court. It should be noted
that the employee has since left the employ of the entity and the onus is on the former employee to
commence action at the labour court.
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2020

2019

There were ten legal matters that were not concluded by 31 March 2019. These matters include five civil
claims and five labour related matters. Maximum exposure on these was not determinable at reporting
date. Of these matters two remained in the 2019/20 financial year and are reported above.
Civil matters
1.

The ECLB is cited as a second respondent in two matters relating to the interpretation of the Eastern
Cape Liquor Act, 2003 (Act no. 10 of 2003).
- In the first matter the applicant is claiming R200 000 in damages.
- In the second matter the case was dismissed with costs.

2.

An application to access information in terms of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2002
(Act no. 2 of 2002) was lodged with the high court. It is not possible to estimate the costs associated
with this matter at this stage.

3.

An application was made in the high court seeking to compel a stakeholder involved in the issuing of
licences to come to a conclusion on various license applications lodged by the applicant since 2013.
The ECLB is a second respondent in the matter and no relief is sought from the ECLB at this stage.

4.

The final legal matter relates to an interpretation of Section 22 of the Eastern Cape Liquor Act, 2003
(Act no. 10 of 2003) in relation to the conversion of close corporations to companies in terms of the
Companies Act.

5.

The applicant applied for an interdict against first respondent not to interfere with their business and
the ECLB is cited as a second respondent in its capacity as the regulator.

Labour matters
1.

The CCMA ruled in favour of the ECLB in a labour matter. The employee took the decision on review
to the labour court.

2.

The CCMA ruled in favour of an employee in a labour matter. The ECLB took the decision on review
to the labour court.

3.

An employee has lodged an application with the CCMA alleging that the ECLB has acted unfairly.

4.

A group of employees belonging to NEHAWU have lodged an application with the CCMA alleging
unfair discrimination relating to equal pay for work of equal value.

5.

During the 2013/14 financial year, the labour court concluded a labour dispute in the favour of an
employee with costs. ECLB is still awaiting the full bill of costs relating to this matter. It is not practical
for ECLB to estimate these costs.
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23.

2020

2019

Related parties

Relationships
Board Members
Controlling entity
Members of key management
Audit Committee Members
Entities under the same controlling entity

Refer to Board members' report note 24
DEDEAT
Refer to note 24
Refer below
Eastern Cape Development Corporation
Eastern Cape Gambling and Betting Board
Eastern Cape Parks and Tourism Agency
Coega Industrial Development Zone
East London Industrial Development Zone

Related party transactions

Related party rental related transactions
ECDC rent paid
ECDC rental receivable balance
ECDC operating lease payable
Controlling entity related transactions

856 634
116 968
252 415

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Received on behalf of DEDEAT
Paid to DEDEAT
(Payable)/due from DEDEAT
Prior year advance payments made to DEDEAT

62 483 000
22 233 250
(19 039 221)
(696 847)
(2 497 183)

1 056 010
116 968
245 845

59 541 000
22 140 300
(23 445 586)
1 305 287
-

Payments made to the ECLB relating to licensing transactions amounted to R23 380 406 of which R1 147
156 related to unallocated receipts and R22 233 250 related to allocated revenue and recorded as revenue
received on behalf of DEDEAT in the 2019/20 financial year. Unallocated receipts are recorded under
sundry payables.
Revenue received on behalf of DEDEAT in the 2018/19 financial year included unallocated receipts which
have been reflected as prior year advance payments made to DEDEAT in the 2019/20 financial year.
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2020

2019

Audit Committee Members & Remuneration
2020
Committee
fees
117 300
32 000
28 000
177 300

Mr W. Manthe (Chairperson)
Adv. S Gugwini-Peter (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr. Z Hewu
Mr. V Pangwa
Mr. P Jizana

Reimbursive
travel

Total

852
852

117 300
32 000
28 000
852
178 152

Reimbursive
travel
3 954
525
4 479

Total

2019
Committee
fees
82 800
28 000
20 000
130 800

Mr W. Manthe (Chairperson)
Adv. S Gugwini-Peter (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr. Z Hewu
Mr. V Pangwa
Mr. P Jizana

82 800
31 954
20 000
525
135 279

Mr. Z Hewu is a DEDEAT representative to the Board and a member of the Audit Committee and no committee
fees have been paid to him.
Mr. P Jizana is employed by the Department of Public Works and no committee fees have been paid to him.
24.

Emoluments to Senior Management and Board Members

Senior Management
2020
Mr KC Maneli (Chief Executive Officer) - Resigned 31/03/2020
Ms. A Vikilahle (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Z Tyikwe (Chief Inspector)
Mr. P Tyali (Senior Manager Licensing)
Dr. N Makala (Senior Manager Corporate Services)

Emoluments Other benefits
Total
1 973 535
312 488 2 286 023
1 346 169
213 062 1 559 231
1 430 867
216 847 1 647 714
1 431 567
219 364 1 650 931
1 400 649
221 696 1 622 345
7 582 787
1 183 457 8 766 244

2019
Salary Other benefits
Total
1 944 396
307 870 2 252 266
1 290 744
202 105 1 492 849
1 371 950
235 531 1 607 481
1 372 621
208 009 1 580 630
1 342 978
206 903 1 549 881
7 322 689
1 160 418 8 483 107

Mr KC Maneli (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. A Vikilahle (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Z Tyikwe (Chief Inspector)
Mr. P Tyali (Senior Manager Licensing)
Dr. N Makala (Senior Manager Corporate Services)

Non-Executive Board Members
2020

Ms. N Moleshe-Pakade (Chairperson - Appointed 26/02/2020)
Mr. MJ Batembu
Ms. B Jojo (Appointed 26/02/2020)
Ms. N Tys (Appointed 26/02/2020)
Prof. LY Majova-Songca (Chairperson term ended 31/08/2019)
Adv. ZL Mapoma (term ended 01/12/2019)

Board
Members'
fees
36 000
119 000
25 500
25 500
24 000
114 500
344 500

Cell phone
allowance

Total

3 000
3 000
6 000

39 000
119 000
25 500
25 500
27 000
114 500
350 500

Mr. Z Hewu a DEDEAT representative to the Eastern Cape Liquor Board was reimbursed travelling
expenses amounting to R7 411 (2019: R10 251)
Figures in Rand

2020
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2019
Board
Members'
fees

Travel
reimbursement

Cell phone
allowance

Total

Prof. LY Majova-Songca (Chairperson)

108 000

-

36 000

144 000

Adv. ZL Mapoma

145 750

8 092

-

153 842

Mr. MJ Batembu

110 500

-

-

110 500

364 250

8 092

36 000

408 342

25.

Risk management

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
entity’s risk to liquidity is therefore as a result of the funds availability to cover future commitments. The
entity manages liquidity risk through ensuring that adequate funds are available to meet its expected and
unexpected financial commitments through an ongoing review of cash flows and future commitments.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the entity. The entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables from exchange
transactions. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits
exposure to any one counter-party.
Credit risk relating to receivables from exchange transactions is limited and relates mostly to rental
deposits, staff debt as well as licensing fees paid in advance to DEDEAT due to payments received with
limited or incorrect information also referred to unallocated payments. Fees paid to DEDEAT are also
disclosed in related party transactions comprise a widespread customer base.
All financial assets and liabilities are carried at cost.
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions

Financial liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non-exchange transactions
Finance lease obligation

17 358 981
844 100
18 203 081

12 201 293
3 179 433
15 380 726

17 510 171
1 963 171
2 198 645
21 671 987

14 908 166
3 267 529
18 175 695

Market risk
The entity’s activities expose it primarily to the risks of fluctuations in interest rates.
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The entity manages interest rate risk through negotiating preferential rates with lenders on all amounts
borrowed, as well as the use of fixed interest rates.
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26. Post balance sheet events
Disaster Management regulations effected due to the COVID 19 pandemic have resulted in: ·
the entity adjusting its annual performance targets for the 2021 financial year, and
·
a proposal made through the MEC for DEDEAT to review licencing fees for the 2020/21 financial year
as means of providing relief to liquor traders.
It should be noted that the entity's ability to continue as a going concern has not been affected.
27. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance
The budget disclosed in comparison of budget to actual amounts covers the period 01 April 2019 to 31
March 2020 and is for the ECLB only. The budget is prepared on cash basis. The financial statements are
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting. The classification basis adopted in the budget is the same as
the financial information.
Changes to the approved and the final budget are as a result of reallocations within the approved budget
to utilise budget savings where cost pressures and entity priorities have been identified. Changes also
relate to increase in own revenue mainly through interest earned with banks, donations and sponsorships
from the liquor industry amounting as well as the net effect of prior year surplus funds approved and
available as well as the current year provision for unspent funds at the end of the financial year.
Own revenue increased by R1 million due interest earned on favourable balances as well as a salary
reimbursement received from Momentum.
Net differences in operating and related expenditure relate mostly to non-cash items relating to
depreciation and amortisation, impairment for credit losses and increase in leave accrual account.
Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance:
Net (deficit) surplus per the statement of financial performance
Adjusted for:
Under budget: revenue from exchange and non-exchange transactions
Net differences in operating related expenditure
Gain on the sale of assets
Increase in impairment for credit losses
Unspent budget relating to capital expenditure
Net surplus per approved budget

(832 613)

2 252 763

(1 146 690)
2 451 643
165 319
6 434
644 093

(1 157 587)
592 374
22 245
3 980
153 510
1 867 285

28. Statutory Information in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)
Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance
Add: fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current
Less: Amounts recoverable - current
Closing balance

521
(521)
-
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-

